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Financial Highlights

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Year Ended and as of December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Amounts in thousands except earnings per share)
Income Statement Data:
Sales 6,218,436 6,306,430 4,351,169 3,227,324 2,431,693
Cost of sales (4,307,988) (4,436,155) (2,866,202) (2,179,866) (1,763,374)
Selling and
administrative
expenses (657,931) (575,657) (505,773) (415,743) (311,808)
Net Profit - 900,269 958,629 645,425 307,991 172,091
Basic earnings per
share RMB0.2548 RMB0.3042 RMB0.2394 RMBO0.1181 RMBO0.0660
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets 11,676,823 10,537,104 7,021,145 3,452,653 2,400,162
Current assets 6,127,118 6,076,716 4,782,337 2,148,902 1,682,336
Current liabilities 5,741,741 6,177,693 3,568,580 1,479,240 710,093
Shareholders’ equity 5,412,703 3,831,474 2,537,334 1,248,618 952,146
Notes:
1. The Consolidated Income Statements for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 are set out on page 23. The Income Statement

Data for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 are derived from the historical financial statements of the Group.

2. The Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are set out on page 24 to 25. The Balance Sheet Data as of
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 are derived from the historical financial statements of the Group. ’



Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Grand
Hyatt Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, June 28, 2002 at 9: 00 a.m. for the following

purposes:

1.  To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the reports of directors and
auditors of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001;

2. To consider and approve a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2001;

3.  To re-elect directors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration;

4. To authorise the board of directors to appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration; and

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

A

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

(©

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue or deal with
additional shares in the share capital of the Company or securities convertible into such shares
or options, warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any shares or convertible securities and
to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which would or
might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by
the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the exercise of the
subscription rights or conversion under the terms of any warrants issued by the Company or
any securities which are convertible into shares of the Company and from time to time
outstanding, (iii) the exercise of any option granted under the share option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to officers and/or employees of
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company, or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares of the Company in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
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(d

accordance with the bye-laws of the Company in force from time to time; shall not exceed 20
per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing of this resolution and the said approval be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution;

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earlier of;

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the bye-laws of the Company or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held;
and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of the Company open for a period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders of shares of the Company on the register of members of the
Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusion or other arrangement as the directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any réstrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognized regulatory body or such
stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”

B. “THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all powers of the Company to purchase its own shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or any other exchange
on which the securities of the Company may be listed and recognized by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose (“Recognized
Stock Exchange”), subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations of
Bermuda, bye-laws of the Company and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or any other Recognized Stock Exchange as amended from
time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;



Notice of Annual General Meeting (conro

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which may be purchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant
Period shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution and the said approval be limited
accordingly; and '

(c) for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the bye-laws of the Company or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held;
and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

C. “THAT, subject to the passing of resolutions numbered 4A and 4B, the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company which are to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the
authority granted to the directors of the Company mentioned in resolution numbered 4B shall be
added to the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company that may be allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to
resolution numbered 4A above, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of
this resolution.” v

‘ By order of the Board
Brilliance China Automotive Holdings Limited
Yang Rong
Chairman

Hong Kong, April 25, 2002
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Head office and principal place of business:
Suites 2303-06

23rd Floor

Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
or proxies to attend and vote on a poll in his stead. On a poll, votes may be given either personally (or in
the case of a member being a corporation, by its duly authorized representative) or by proxy. A member
may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company. A form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed herewith.

2. To be valid, the form of proxy together with any power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or a notarially certified copy of that power attorney or authority must be delivered to the
Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Central Registration Hong Kong Limited, at Room 1901-1905,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

3.  Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude members from attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting.

4. The Hong Kong branch register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, June 25, 2002
to Thursday, June 27, 2002, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Central Registration Hong Kong Limited at
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4: 00 p.m. on Monday, June 24, 2002.



Chairman’s Statement

RONG YANG

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Shareholders:

In this challenging year of 2001, we have
still achieved a 5.0% increase in unit sales
We maintained

the

volume. have our

leadership position in Chinese

minibus market despite unprecedented

competition, both foreign and domestic.
Due to our long-standing efforts to provide
more variety, better quality and improved
services to our customers, the “JinBei”
brand has become the proud symbol of

quality in the Chinese minibus market.

We have maintained our position as the
most profitable minibus manufacturer in
China. For the first time, however, we have
failed to record an increase in net income

since we took over the management of

Shenyang Jinbei Passenger Vehicle
Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (hereinafter
“Shenyang Automotive”) due to the

additional costs relating to the planned

roll-out of the Zhong Hua Sedan.

China’s accession to the World Trade
Organization in November 2001 marked
the beginning of a new era for the
automotive industry in China. With the
gradual reduction in tariffs, competition in
the Chinese market is intensified by the

imported automobiles. These challenges
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have compelled us to further improve our
current operations so as to bring better

value to our shareholders.

On December 17, 2001, Shenyang
Automotive entered into an agreement
with Toyota Motor Corporation for the
transfer of technology relating to the fifth
generation of the Toyota Minibus, the
GRANVIA. Pre-production is scheduled to
begin in the second half of 2002 and
commercial production will be launched
one year later. The Zhong Hua Sedan,
designed by the world - renowned
Italdesign, is under pre-production and is
due to be launched to the market once
final approval is obtained from the Chinese
governmental authorities. In addition, we
are currently in negotiations with several
foreign automobile manufacturers
regarding the production of automobiles

for the growing Chinese automotive

market at our existing facilities.

We believe that the addition of the above-
mentioned new products in the current
year and beyond is an essential element in
our overall strategy. Looking into the
future, the management remain confident
that our current product strategy,
combined with the united efforts of our
employees, will enable us to provide good
value to our shareholders for many years

to come.

Last but not least, I would like to express
my heartfelt gratitude to our staff and

shareholders for their continued support.

VIR

Rong Yang
Chairman
April 18, 2002




Management’s Discussion & Analysis

The consolidated net sales of the Company and its operating subsidiaries, Shenyang Automotive, Ningho
Yuming Machinery Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Yuming”), Shenyang XingYuanDong Automobile component
Co., Ltd. (“Xing Yuan Dong”), Ningbo Brilliance Ruixing Auto Components Co., Ltd., Mianyang Brilliance
Ruian Automotive Components Co., Ltd. and Shenyang Brilliance Dongxing Automotive Component Co., Ltd.
for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 1.4% to RMB6,218.4 million from RMB6,306.4 million for the
vear ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in sales was primarily due to its price reduction of Shenyang
Automotive’s minibuses and the slight decrease in the unit sales of the Deluxe Minibus.

Shenyang Automotive sold a total of 63,009 units minibuses in 2001, a 5.0% increase over the 60,018 units
minibuses sold in 2000. Shenyang Automotive sold 53,356 units Mid-priced Minibus in 2001, a 7.0% increase
over the 49,873 units sold in 2000. Units sales of the Deluxe Minibus decreased by 4.8% from 10,145 Units in
2000 to 9,653 units in 2001.

Cost of sales, including depreciation and amortization, decreased by 2.9% to RMB4,308.0 million in 2001 from
RMB4,436.2 million in 2000. This decrease was primarily due to our continued efforts to reduce the cost of
domestic components for minibuses.

Operating profit of the Company decreased by 2.1% to RMB1,256.0 million in 2001 from RMB1,283.4 million in
2000. This decrease was due primarily to the increase of general and administrative expenses relating to the
additional pre-operation expenses and depreciation of buildings relating to our future sedan production. Selling
and administrative expenses rose by 14.3% to RMB657.9 million in 2001 from RMB575.7 million in 2000 and as a
percentage of sales increased from 9.1% in 2000 to 10.6% in 2001. Profit before taxation and minority interests
decreased by 20.6% to RMB1,229.7 million in 2001 from RMB1,549.5 million in 2000. However, taxation
decreased to RMB121.7 million in 2001 from RMB322.5 million in 2000 due to the reduction of enterprise
income tax rate for Xing Yuan Dong to 7.5% in 2001 from 33% in 2000.

As a result, the Company’s net profit decreased by 6.1% to RMB900.3 million in 2001 from RMB958.6 million in
2000. Basic earnings per share were RMB0.2548 in 2001, a 16.2% decrease from the basic earning of RMB0.3042
per share for 2000.

Looking into the future, the management remains confident that following our current product strategy, with
the addition of new products in the current year and beyond and with the united efforts of our employees, we
will be able to provide good value to our shareholders for many years to come.

10



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Rong, aged 45, has been the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 1992 and is also the Chairman of the Board of Shenyang Automotive. He is responsible for the
overall management of the Company. He received a Ph.D. in Economics from Southwest University of Finance
and Economics in Chengdu and is currently Adjunct Professor and Chairman of the Board of that institution’s
School of International Business. Mr. Yang is also the Executive Director and Vice Chairman of The Chinese
Financial Educational Development Foundation.

Mr. Wu Xiao An, aged 40, has been Vice Chairman, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 1993. He is responsible for the administration, debt and equity management of the Company. |
Mr. Wu holds a B.A. from the Beijing Foreign Languages Institute and an M.B.A. from Fordham University in
New York. He has considerable experience in commercial banking and served from 1988 to 1993 as Deputy
Manager of the Bank of China, New York Branch.

Mr. Su Qiang, aged 36, has been a Director and Executive Vice President of the Company since 1992. He is
responsible for the administrative and production management of the Company. He holds a B.A. from the
People’s University of China, as well as a graduation certificate from the Graduate School of the People’s Bank
of China (the “PBOC”). Mr. Su also served as General Manager of Shenyang Automotive from 1995 to 1997.

Mr. Hong Xing, aged 39, has been a Director and Executive Vice President of the Company since 1993. He
received a B.A. from the Beijing Foreign Languages Institute in 1984. He also received a ].D. from the
Columbia University School of Law in New York and is a qualified attorney in the United States. From 1985 to
1986, Mr. Hong worked as an Attache in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the PRC. From 1986 to 1990, Mr.
Hong was an international civil servant at the United Nations Headquarters in New York.

Mr. Yang Mao Zeng, aged 66, has been a Director, Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of the Company
since 1995. He is responsible for the administrative and financial management of the Company. He graduated
from the Soochow University. and previously served as the General Manager of the Bank of China, Cayman
Islands Branch, in 1993.

Mr. He Tao, aged 30, has been a Director since November 1998. He is also the Chief Financial Officer, Deputy
General Manager and Director of Shenyang Automotive, which he joined in 1995. He is responsible for the
financial management of the Company. Mr. He received a B.A. degree from the University of Finance and
Economics in Shanghai. From 1993 to 1995, he worked as the Manager of the accounting department of
Brilliance China Machinery Co., Ltd. in Luoyang, China.

1



Directors and Senior Management (cono

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Sheng Hong, aged 58, is currently an Executive Vice President of the China Minsheng Banking
Corporation. In 1983, Mr. Wei held the position of the Vice President of the PBOC of Xinjiang Autonomous
Region and the Director of the Foreign Exchange Control Bureau of Xinjiang District. He later became the
President of the PBOC of Xinjiang Autonomous Region. In 1989, he became the Head of the Education
Department and later the Head of the Regulation and Rule Department of the head office of the PBOC.

Mr. Huang Anjiang, aged 48, is a senior public notary and a lawyer in China. He was a Director and Deputy
General Manager of the China Legal Service (Hong Kong) Ltd. Mr. Huang was the Deputy Director of Beijing
Public Notary Office and the Public Notary Division of Justice Bureau in Beijing. Mr. Huang was also the
general secretary of Beijing Public Notary Association as well as the head of the State Public Notary Office in
China. He is currently a council member of China Public Notary Association and a member of China Society of
Law and a council member of China Society of Economic Law (Beijing branch).

Mr. Yi Min Li, aged 40, was appointed independent non-executive director of the Company on February 13,
2001. Mr. Yi is a Professor in the School of International Business, Southwest University of Finance and

Economics, Chengdu, Sichuan.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hong Xing, aged 39, has been a Director and Executive Vice President of the Company since 1993. He
received a B.A. from the Beijing Foreign Languages Institute in 1984. He also received a J.D. from the
Columbia University School of Law in New York and is a qualified attorney in the United States. From 1985 to
1986, Mr. Hong worked as an Attache in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the PRC. From 1986 to 1990, Mr.
Hong was an international civil servant at the United Nations Headquarters in New York.

12



Report of Directors .

The Directors present this report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2001. :

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company whose principal operating asset is its majority interest in Shenyang
Automotive. Historically, the Company has derived its revenues from Shenyang Automotive’s sales of
minibuses in China. As a result, the Company’s operations results have been primarily driven by the sales price,
sales volume and cost of production of Shenyang Automotive’s minibuses. In May 1998, the Company acquired
an indirect interest in two component suppliers: a 51% equity interest in Ningbo Yuming, a wholly foreign-
owned Chinese enterprise primarily engaged in the production of automobile window molding, stripping and
other auto components; and a 50% equity interest in Mianyang Xinchen, a sino-foreign equity joint venture
manufacturer of gasoline engines for use in passenger vehicles and light duty trucks. In October 1998, June
2000 and July 2000, the Company established Xing Yuan Dong, Ningbo Brilliance Ruixing Auto Components
Co., Ltd. and Mianyang Brilliance Ruian Automotive Components Co., Ltd. respectively as its wholly owned
subsidiaries to centralize and consolidate the sourcing of auto parts and components for Shenyang Automotive.
In December 2000, the Company acquired a 50% equity interest in Shenyang Xinguang Brilliance Automobile
Engine Co., Ltd., a sino-foreign equity joint venture manufacturer of gasoline engines for use in passenger
vehicles. In December 2001, the Company acquired the 100% equity interest in Shenyang Brilliance Dongxing
Automotive Component Co., Ltd., a foreign invested manufacturer of automotive components in the PRC. As a
result, the Company’s income base has been broadened and its future financial performance may diverse from
that of Shenyang Automotive.

TURNOVER AND CONTRIBUTION

The Group’s turnover and contribution to profit from operation for the year ended December 31, 2001, analyzed
by product category, are as follows:

Contribution to
profit from

Turnover operation

RMB’000 RMB’000
Sales of minibuses : 5,974,426 1,874,408
Sales of automotive components 244,010 36,040
Total 6,218,436 1,910,448
Other revenue 38,863
Selling expenses (275,872)
General and administrative expenses (382,059)
Other operating expenses (35,405)
Profit from operation 1,255,975

13
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results for the Group for the year ended December 31, 2001, are set out in the financial statements on page
23.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2001 is set out and analyzed on page 26

" and in note 30 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKS0.005 per share in cash in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2001. The dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on June 28, 2002, will be paid on or before July 3, 2002 to shareholders registered on June 27, 2002. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from June 25, 2002 to June 27, 2002, both days inclusive.
Details of the dividends paid and proposed are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 3.
RESERVES

Movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during the year ended December 31, 2001 are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

The movements of fixed assets of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2001 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries and associated companies are set out in notes 18 and 19 respectively to the
financial statements.

14
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the year ended December 31, 2001 are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

On June 2, 2001, share options were granted to certain directors and employees entitling them to subscribe for
a total of 31,800,000 shares at HKS1.896 per share, in accordance with the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on September 18, 1999. Such share options vested immediately upon the grant and are exercisable
within a period of ten years.

Details of share options which have been granted to the directors of the Company are as follows:

Name Number of share options
Yang Rong 7,800,000
Wu Xiao An 2,800,000
Su Qiang 2,338,000
Hong Xing 2,338,000
He Tao 2,338,000
Yang Mao Zeng 2,338,000

As at December 31, 2001, none of the above share options has been exercised. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, no option has been cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme of the Company.

The Directors consider that it is not appropriate to state the value of all the share options that were granted
during the financial year ended December 31, 2001 under the share option scheme given that the variables
which are critical for the calculation of the value of such share options cannot be determined. The variables
which are critical for the determination of the value of such share options include, the subscription price for the
shares upon the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the share options which may be adjusted under
certain circumstances and whether or not such share options will be exercised by the grantees. In view of the
length of the option period and the possibility that the subscription price and the number of shares that may be
subscribed thereunder may be adjusted prior to the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to such share
options, the Directors are of the view that the value of the share options depends on a number of variables
which are either difficult to ascertain or can only be ascertained subject to a number of theoretical basis and
speculative assumptions. Accordingly, the Directors believe that any calculation of the value of the share
options will not be meaningful and may be misleading to shareholders in the circumstances.

15
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended December 31, 2001 and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yang Rong (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Xiao An (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Su Qiang

Mr. Hong Xing

Mr. Yang Mao Zeng

Mr. He Tao

Independent Non-executive Divectors:

Mr. Wei Sheng Hong
Mr. Huang Anjiang
Mr. Yi Min Li

Mr. Wu Xiao An, Mr. Su Qiang and Mr. Yang Mao Zeng will retire by rotation in accordance with clause 99 of
the bye-laws of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at December 31, 2001, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 16(1) of the
Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (Cap. 396) of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SDI Ordinance”)
showed that the following shareholder has an interest of 10% or more in the share capital of the Company:

Number of shares Percent of

Name Beneficially held shareholding
The Chinese Financial Education Development

Foundation (the “Foundation”) 1,446,121,500 shares 39.45%

Save as disclosed above, no other party was recorded in the register required to be kept by the SDI Ordinance
as having an interest of 10% or more of the shares of the Company as at December 31, 2001.

16
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at December 31, 2001, the interests of the directors in the share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register maintained under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”) .
were as follows:

Name of directors Type of interests Number of shares
Yang Rong personal 85,730,000
He Tao personal 35,045,000
Su Qiang " personal 34,500,000
Wu Xiao An personal 30,000,000
Hong Xing personal 26,640,000
Yang Mao Zeng Personal 2,800,000

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives or their respective associates had any interests
in the equity or debt securities of the Company or any associated corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended December 31, 2001 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or associated companies was a party and in which any director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yang Rong, Mr. Wu Xiao An, Mr. Su Qiang, Mr. Hong Xing and Mr. He Tao, all of whom are
executive Directors, has entered into service agreement with the Company dated August 21, 2000 for a term of
five years commencing from October 1, 2000.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no service contract between the Directors and members of the Group which
does not expire or is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities during the year.

ANALYSIS OF BORROWINGS & INTERESTS CAPITALIZED

The particulars of the Group’s borrowings as at the end of the year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial
statements. Details of interest capitalized are set out in notes 5, 6 and 17 to the financial statements.

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The debt to equity ratio, computed at dividing total liabilities by shareholders’ equity, as of December 31, 2001
is approximately 1.06 (2000: 1.61). The decrease of the ratio is primarily due to the repayments of bank loans
during the year. ‘

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders. Such obligations are
provided for in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2001, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented approximately
60% of the Group’s turnover and sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately 42%. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers during the year represented
approximately 26% of the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest

supplier was approximately 9%. "

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, has any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions have been entered into and/or ongoing after the listing of the Company’s
share on the Stock Exchange. The Stock Exchange has, subject to certain conditions, granted a waiver to the
Company from strict compliance with the requirements as stipulated in Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in
connection with these transactions:

RMB’000
Purchases of materials and component parts made by Ningbo Yuming from
Mr. Qin’s, a minority shareholder of Ningbo Yuming, wholly-owned subsidiaries 33,524
Purchases of materials and component parts made by Xing Yuan Dong from
JinBei’s associates 201,176
Purchases of materials and component parts made by Shenyang Automotive from
JinBei’s associates 115,870
Purchases of materials by Xing Yuan Dong from Tieling Brilliance 14,950
Sales made by Shenyang Automotive to Jinbei's associates 14,923

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the transactions disclosed as related party transactions
in note 9 to the financial statements do not constitute connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company confirmed that all connected transactions in 2001 to
which any member of the Group was a party:

1.  had been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

2. had been e'ﬁtered into either (a) on normal commercial terms or (b) on terms not less favourable than
those available to or from (as the case may be) independent third parties, or (¢) where there is no
available comparison for the purpose of determining whether (a) or (b) is satisfied, on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the transactions and confirmed to the Directors that:
1.  the Directors had approved the transactions; and

2. the transactions had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the related agreements governing
such transactions and within the annual caps as approved by the Stock Exchange.
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USE OF LISTING PROCEEDS

As at December 31, 2001, the Company has used approximately RMB350 million of its listing proceeds for the
acquisition of pressing facilities and the expansion of new production facilities and approximately RMB150
million for working capital requirement.

EMPLOYEES

The Group employed approximately 7,500 employees as at the end of the year 2001. Employees’ cost (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately RMB169,794,000 for the year 2001. The Group ensures that
the pay levels of its employees are competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related basis,
with mandatory provident fund scheme and share option scheme, within the general framework of the Group’s
salary and bonus system. The Group will make every effort to retain a highly professional team in its operation.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange throughout the year. In
accordance with the Code of Best Practice, the Company has established an audit committee comprising three
independent non-executive directors. The audit committee is to review with management the accounting
policies adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing and financial reporting matters.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co who will retire and a resolution
will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting to authorise the board of directors to appoint auditors and to

fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Xiao An
Director

Hong Kong,
April 25, 2002
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ANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co
21st Floor Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BRILLIANCE CHINA AUTOMOTIVE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 23 to 78 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as of December 31, 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
April 25, 2002
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended December 31, 2001
[Expressed in thousands of RMB except for per share amount]

Note(s) 2001 2000
(Note 34)
Turnover 4, 9a 6,218,436 6,306,430
Cost of sales 9a (4,307,988) (4,436,155)
Gross profit 1,910,448 1,870,275
Other revenue 4 38,863 8,917
Selling expenses 9a (275,872) (364,871)
General and administrative expenses of (382,059) (210,786)
Other expenses (35,405) (20,149)
Profit from operations 1,255,975 1,283,386
Interest income 4, 5, of 106,285 106,351
Interest expense 6 (178,028) (96,280)
Share of profits or losses of associated companies 19 45,448 74,423
Other income 4 — 181,600
Profit before taxation 7 1,229,680 1,549,480
Income tax expense 10 (121,655) (322,534)
Profit after taxation but before minority interests 1,108,025 1,226,946
Minority interests (207,756) (268,317)
Net profit attributable to shareholders 12 900,269 958,629
Dividends 13 36,999 27,591
Earnings per share
— Basic 14 RMBO0.2548 RMB 0.3042
— Diluted 14 N/A RMB 0.2953

A separate statement of recognized gains and losses is not presented because there were no recognized gains

or losses other than the net profit for the year.



Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2001
[Expressed in thousands of RMB)

Consolidated Company
Note(s) 2001 2000 2001 2000
(Note 34) (Note 34)
FIXED ASSETS, NET 9f, 15, 25 2,375,875 646,951 1,847 1,286
INTANGIBLE ASSET 16 681,100 681,100 — —
CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 17 713,219 1,831,596 — —
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 — — 3,931,999 2,907,981
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES 19 1,319,598 1,068,723 — —
GOODWILL, NET 20 414,464 229,397 —_ —
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 645 2,621 — —
LONG-TERM ADVANCES TO AN
AFFILIATED COMPANY 9¢g 44,804 — — —
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,220,226 1,338,038 33,108 45,395
Short-term bank deposits — 492,355 — —
Pledged short-term bank deposits 26 1,925,805 905,528 — —
Notes receivable 22 235,167 129,578 — —
Notes receivable from affiliated
companies 9¢ 686,869 449,679 — —_
Accounts receivable, net 21 24,107 27,037 — —
Amounts due from affiliated
companies, net 9b 596,937 101,763 —_ —
Other receivables 23 172,703 998,279 — —
Prepayments and other current assets 9d 339,949 230,021 2,145 309
Inventories, net 24 626,969 795,631 —_ —_
Dividends receivable — — 63,086 33,709
Advances to affiliated companies 9g 298,386 608,807 117,905 215,947
6,127,118 6,076,716 216,244 295,360

Total current assets
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As of December 31, 2001
(Expressed in thousands of RAMB]

Consolidated Company
Note(s) 2001 2000 2001 2000
(Note 34) (Note 34)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term bank loans 25 405,500 1,047,229 — —
Notes payable 26 3,300,000 3,567,318 — —
Accounts payable 27 666,216 472,068 — —
Amounts due to affiliated companies 9e 492,079 429,606 —_ —
Customer advances 83,559 37,773 — —
Other payables 385,661 349,522 5,272 4,948
Dividends payable to joint venture
partners 46,452 1,747 —_ —
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 73,730 65,630 4,909 5,128
Taxes payable 234,268 154,489 203 203
Advances from affiliated companies %h 54,276 52,311 — 2,611
Total current liabilities 5,741,741 6,177,693 10,384 12,790
Net current assets (liabilities) 385,377 (100,977) 205,860 282,570
MINORITY INTERESTS 522,379 527,937 — —
Net assets 5,412,703 3,831,474 4,139,706 3,191,837
Represented by:
Share capital 28, 29 303,194 276,891 303,194 276,891
Share premium 29 2,033,916 1,343,953 2,033,916 1,343,953
Reserves 29 3,055,988 2,192,718 1,782,991 1,553,081
Proposed dividend 29 19,605 17,912 19,605 17,912
Shareholders’ equity 5,412,703 3,831,474 4,139,706 3,191,837

Approved by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2002 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Wu Xijao An
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended December 31, 2001
[Expressed in thousands of RMB

Note 2001 2000
(Note 34)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30a 1,694,104 3,367,933
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 77,207 116,029
Interest paid (227,192) (175,398)
Dividends from an associated company — 42,434
Dividends paid to joint venture partners (169,630) (28,692)
Dividends paid (35,306) (21,690)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (354,921) (67,317)
Taxation
PRC enterprise income tax paid (183,845) (369,373)
Investing activities
Payments for fixed assets and construction-in-progress (733,356) (936,279)
Decrease (Increase) in short-term bank deposits 492,355 (174,966)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 25,085 179
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 30b 6,805 —
Payments for other long-term assets — (1,194)
Increase in investments in associated companies (480,000) (16,635)
Decrease (Increase) in advances to associated companies 269,170 (241,299)
Decrease (Increase) in advances to affiliated companies 90,566 (1,054,528)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (329,375) (2,424,722)
Net cash inflow before financing 825,963 506,521
Financing 30c
Increase in advances from affiliated companies 1,965 28,909
Increase in pledged short-term bank deposits (1,020,277) (371,027)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 716,266 _, 345,190
Decrease in short-term bank loans (641,729) (543,631)
Net cash outflow from financing (943,775) (540,559)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (117,812) (34,038)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,338,038 1,372,076
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,220,226 1,338,038
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Notes to the Financial Statements

[Amounis expressed in RMB unless otherwise siated)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

Brilliance China Automotive Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on June 9,
1992 with limited liability. The Company’s ADSs and shares are traded on The New York Stock Exchange
Inc. and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited respectively. The Company is an investment holding
company. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to
as the “Group”) are the manufacturing and selling of minibuses and automotive components in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Company and the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”). Principal accounting policies are summarized below:

a. Basis of measurement
The fihancial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis.
b. Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the following Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 14 (revised) Leases

SSAP 26 Segmental reporting

SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 29 Intangible assets

SSAP 30 Business combinations

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

SSAP. 32 Consolidated financial statements and accounting for investments in
.' subsidiaries

In addition to the adoption of the above standards, the Group has adopted the consequential changes

made to SSAP 10 “Accounting for investments in associates”, SSAP 17 “Property, plant and
equipment” and SSAP 18 “Revenue”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (conva)

[Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
b. Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (Cont'd)

The effects on the financial statements of the Group and the Company from the adoption of the
above accounting standards are tabulated below:

The Group and the Company

2001 2000
Opening Opening
Profit from  balance of  Profit from balance of
operations net assets operations net assets

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

SSAP 9 (revised) — 17,912 — 6,497

SSAP 9 (revised) prescribes when an enterprise should adjust its financial statements for events after
the balance sheet date and the disclosures that an enterprise should give about the date when the
financial statements were authorized for issue and about events after the balance sheet date. In
particular, if dividends to holders of equity instruments are proposed or declared after the balance
sheet date, an enterprise should not recognize those dividends as a liability at the balance sheet date.
This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

SSAP 26 establishes principles for reporting financial information by segments to help users of the
financial statements to better understand an enterprise and make more informed judgements about
an enterprise as a whole. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. No
business or geographical segmentation analysis is provided as less than 10% of the consolidated
profit from operations of the Group are attributed to business segments other than manufacturing
and sales of minibuses, or markets outside the PRC.

The 2000 comparative figures presented herein have incorporated the effect of adjustments resulting
from the adoption of the new accounting standards above.

Other than those disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements, the Company
considers that the adoption of or the consequential changes made to the above SSAPs do not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (conra)

{Amounis expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the Company
and the enterprises that it controls. This control is normally evidenced when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to benefit from its
activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from
or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal. The equity and net income attributable to
minority shareholders’ interests are shown separately in the Group’s balance sheet and income
statement, respectively.

Intragroup balances and transactions and resulting unrealized profits are eliminated in full.
Unrealized losses resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated unless the cost cannot be
recovered. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events under similar circumstances.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are included in the income
statement of the Company to the extent of dividends received and receivable.

Turnover
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods, net of consumption tax, discounts and returns.
Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, turnover is recognized on
the following bases:

(i) Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have
been transferred to the customers.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the
rates applicable.
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{Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

e.

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
(iv) Subsidy income

Subsidy income is recognized when the right to receive subsidy is established.
Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method in respect of timing differences between
profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements to the extent
that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallize.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain their books and records in their respective reporting
currencies. The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”). Transactions in other currencies are translated into RMB at the unified exchange rates
quoted by the People’s Bank of China prevailing at the time of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable
unified exchange rates prevailing at that date. All exchange differences are recognized in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Cumulative translation adjustments under shareholders’ equity represent exchange differences
arising from the Company’s change in functional currency in previous years. ’

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing
of funds, including amortization of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, amortization of
ancillary costs incurred in connection with arranging borrowings and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs.
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[Amounis expressed in RMB unless otherwise siated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

h.

Borrowing costs (Cont'd)

Interest charges are expenses as incurred, except when they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a specific asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to prepare for its intended use in which case they are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs are being incurred and the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use are in progress.
Borrowing costs are capitalized at the weighted average cost of the related borrowings (which
includes the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing less any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of funds pending their expenditure) until the asset is ready for its
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recorded.

Other borrowing costs are considered immaterial and are recognized as an expense in the year
incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation.
i

Minibuses are sold with an eighteen-month or 30,000 kilometers first-to-occur limited warranty.
During the warranty period, the Group pays service stations for parts and labor covered by the
warranty, thereafter, customers must pay for all parts and labor.

The costs of the warranty obligation are accrued at the time the sales are recognized, based on the
estimated costs of fulfilling the total obligations, including handling and transportation costs. The
assumiptions used to estimate warranty expenses are reevaluated periodically in light of actual
experience.
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{Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Employee benefits

Pursuant to PRC laws and regulations, contributions to the basic old age insurance and other
benefits for the Group’s PRC staff are made monthly to a government agency based on percentages,
ranging from 43.8% to 50.4% of the standard salary set by the provincial government. Part of such
contributions, ranging from 29.8% to 34.4% is borne by the Group and the remainder is borne by the
staff. The government agency is responsible for the pension liabilities relating to such staff on their
retirement. The Group accounts for these contributions on an accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

Cash represents cash on hand and deposits with banks and other financial institutions which are
repayable on demand. Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash with original maturity of three months or less that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Bank deposits with maturity between three and twelve months are classified as short-term deposits.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost, after provision for doubtful debts.
Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is calculated on the moving-average basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from
an increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

32



Notes to the Financial Statements conta)

[Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

n.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the
fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets beyond its originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of the fixed asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, at annual rates estimated to write off the cost less
10% residual value of each asset over its expected useful life. The annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machinery and equipment

(excluding special tools and moulds) 10%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The costs of special tools and moulds included in machinery and equipment are amortized over their
estimated productive periods.

Land use rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
The useful lives of assets and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization are
eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposals is included in the
income statement.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents factories and office buildings under construction and machinery
pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
cost of construction, machinery and equity and other direct costs plus borrowing costs which include
interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance these projects during the construction
period, to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the assets are completed and ready for
their intended use.
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[Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

p.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise, and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are charged against income in the period incurred except for
development costs which comply with the following criteria:

° the product or process is clearly defined and the costs are separately identified and measured
reliably;

° the technical feasibility of the product or process is demonstrated;
° the product or process will be sold or used in-house;

° a potential market exists for the product or process or its usefulness in the case of internal use
is demonstrated; and

° adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion of the product or
process are available.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase or its completion is recognized as
an expense when it is incurred unless it is probable that expenditure will enable the asset to generate
future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably in which case it will be added to the cost of the
intangible asset.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and

any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed annually at each financial year end.
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[Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stafed)

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

q.

Investments in associated companies

Investments in associated companies where significant influence is exercised by the Group are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, whereby the
investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the associated companies, distributions received from the
associated companies and other necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest in the
associated companies arising from changes in the equity of the associated companies that have not
been included in the income statement and less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Group’s
share of post-acquisition results of associated companies is included in the consolidated income
statement.

Interests in joint ventures

The Group’s investments in joint ventures in the PRC are in the form of sino-foreign equity joint
ventures. For Sino-foreign equity joint ventures, the partners’ profit-sharing ratios and share of net
assets upon the expiration of the joint venture are in proportion to their equity contribution ratios.

Interests in jointly controlled joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, whereby the interest is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits and losses of the jointly
controlled joint ventures, distributions received from the jointly controlled joint ventures and other
necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest in the jointly controlled joint ventures
arising from changes in the equity of the jointly controlled joint ventures that have not been included
in the income statement and less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Group’s share of post-
acquisition results of jointly controlled joint ventures is included in the consolidated income
statement.

In the Company’s financial statements, the Company’s interests in jointly controlled joint ventures
are included under long-term investments and are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. The results of jointly controlled joint ventures are accounted for by the Company to the extent
of dividends received and receivable.

Investments made by means of a joint venture structure is accounted for as a subsidiary when the
Group can control the board of directors or is in a position to exercise control over the financial and
operating policies of the joint venture. A joint venture, not being accounted for as a subsidiary, in
which the Group can exercise significant influence over its management is accounted for as an
associated company.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group’s and the Company's interest in the fair value
of the net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of the acquisition is recorded as
goodwill and recognized as an asset in the balance sheet. With respect to investments in associated
companies and interests in joint ventures accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investments. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the expected future economic life, being the shorter of 40 years or the
remaining life of the respective joint ventures.

Pursuant to SSAP 30, there is a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of goodwill will not exceed
twenty years from initial recognition. The Company’s directors considered the automotive industry
in the PRC is subject to stringent control and regulations and the barrier to new entry is significant.
It is expected that a significant amount of revenue will be generated by the investee companies.
Consequently, in the opinion of the directors, goodwill should be amortized over the shorter of 40
yvears or the remaining life of the respective joint ventures from their initial recognition. The
directors estimate the recoverable amount of goodwill at least at each financial year end.

Operating leases

Leases of assets under which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of assets

Fixed assets, contruction-in-progress, intangible assets, goodwill, investments in associated
companies and subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the income statement for these assets. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling
price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful
life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-
generating unit.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

u.

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

A reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when the impairment losses
recognized for the asset no longer exist or has decreased. The reversal is recorded in income
statement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about a company’s position at the balance
sheet date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate, adjusting events,
are reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

No business or geographical segmentation analysis is provided as less than 10% of the consolidated
turnover and less than 10% of the consolidated profit from operations of the Group are attributed to
business segments other than manufacturing and sales of minibuses, or markets outside the PRC. -

4. REVENUE

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover:
Sales of minibuses 5,974,426 5,861,996
Sales of automotive components 244,010 444,434
6,218,436 6,306,430
Other revenue 38,863 8,917
Other income (subsidy income) — 181,600
Interest income 106,285 106,351
Total revenue 6,363,584 6,603,298
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5. INTEREST INCOME

(Cont’d)

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Interest income from
— Bank deposits 69,746 56,679
— Affiliated companies (Note 99 39,639 56,964
— An associated company (Note 91) — 2,386
— Others (Note 23) 1,350 —
110,735 116,029
Less: Interest income capitalized in
construction-in-progress (Note 17) (4,450) (9,678)
106,285 106,351
6. INTEREST EXPENSE
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Interest expense on
— Borrowings wholly repayable within five years 227,192 175,398
Less: Interest expense capitalized in
construction-in-progress (Note 17) (49,164) (79,118)
178,028 96,280
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging and crediting the following:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Charging:
Amortization of other long-term assets — 850
Depreciation of fixed assets 111,922 106,683
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 4,539 271
Amortization of goodwill included in
— General and administrative expenses 6,200 6,355
— Share of profits or losses of associated companies 11,313 3,398
Provision for inventory obsolescence 3,000 5,000
Provision for impairment losses on tools and moulds 30,950 —
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) 169,794 170,485
Cost of inventories sold (including depreciation and amortization) 4,307,988 4,436,155
Provision for doubtful debts 1,352 227
Auditors’ remuneration 2,300 2,325
Exchange loss, net 11,608 5,413
Research and development costs included in general
and administrative expenses 26,825 7,623
Training expenses included in general and administrative expenses 23,981 17,652
Provision for warranty 36,982 14,042
Operating lease rentals 2,540 3,788
Crediting:
Provision for doubtful debts written back 19,147 —
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments

Details of directors’ emoluments pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
are set out below:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors:

Fees — —
Other emoluments
— Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 18,630 12,989
— Performance related bonuses —_ —
— Contributions to pension scheme —_ —
— Compensation paid for loss of office — —

18,630 12,989

Independent non-executive directors:

Fees ) —_ —

18,630 12,989

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, certain directors of the Company were
granted options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company to acquire 19,952,000 shares of the
Company at HKS1.896 per ordinary share during the year. These options are exercisable from June
2, 2001 to June 1, 2011. During the year, none of the share options was exercised.

The emoluments of the directors (including executive and non-executive directors) analyzed by the
number of directors and emolument ranges are as set out below. The emoluments represent the
amount paid to or receivable by the directors of the Company in the respective financial year and
exclude the benefits derived or to be derived from the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme. '
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

a. Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

2001 2000

Up to RMB1,000,000 3 3
RMB1,000,001 - RMB1,500,000 1 1
RMB1,500,001 - RMB2,000,000 4 3
RMB5,000,001 - RMB5,500,000 — 1
RMB7,000,001 - RMB8,500,000 1 —
9 8

No directors waived their emoluments during the year (2000: Nil).

b. Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) are as follows:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 17,388 12,989
Contributions to pension scheme — —
Number of directors 5 5

Number of employees — —

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2001 were also
directors of the Company whose emoluments are shown above.

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals as inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2000: Nil).

Certain officers of the Company are participants in the Executive Bonus Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan
provides that up to 5% of the Company’s net income be set aside each year for distribution among
Plan participants based upon performance as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
allocation of bonuses among participants is determined at the discretion of the President of the
Company. For the year ended December 31, 2001, no bonus was allocated (2000: Nil).
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

An affiliated company is a company in which one or more of the directors or substantial shareholders of
the Company have direct or indirect beneficial interest in the company or are in a position to exercise
significant influence over the company. Parties are also considered to be affiliated if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, significant transactions with affiliated parties
(these affiliated companies and the Company have certain directors in common and/or other
relationships as specified) are detailed as follows:

a.

Particulars of significant transactions between the companies comprising the Group and affiliated

companies in the ordinary course of business during the year are summarized below:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
{Note 34)
Sales to Shenyang Brilliance Automotive Company Limited

(formerly known as JinBei Automotive Company Limited)

(“JinBei”) and its affiliated companies 14,923 3,527
Purchases from JinBei and its affiliated companies 317,046 25,319
Sales to Shanghai Brilliance Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Brilliance”)

and its affiliated companies 907,232 4,821,322
Purchases from Shanghai Brilliance and its affiliated companies 164,323 153,933
Sales to other affiliated companies of Brilliance Holdings Limited 59,816 644,167
Purchases from other affiliated companies of

Brilliance Holdings Limited 274,379 406,020
Sales to Shanghai Yuantong Automobile Sales and

Service Company Limited (“Shanghai Yuantong”) 2,622,002 83,509
Advertising expenses reimbursed by Shanghai Yuantong 64,070 —
Sales to associated companies 61,683 98,546
Purchases from associated companies 635,373 715,610
Purchases from affiliated companies of the joint venture

partner in Ningbo Yuming Machinery Industrial Co., Ltd.

(“Ningbo Yuming”) 33,524 33,237
Sales to a joint venture partner in Shenyang Aerospace Mitsubishi

Motors Engine Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Aerospace”) — 1,710
Sales to affiliated companies of the joint venture partner in Mianyang

Xinchen — 15,136
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

a.

(Cont'd)

The sales and purchases transactions above were carried out after negotiations between the Group

and the affiliated companies in the ordinary course of business and on the basis of estimated market

value as determined by the directors.

As of December 31, 2001, amounts due from affiliated companies arising from trading activities

consisted of the following:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 34)
Due from Shanghai Yuantong (i) 439,411 7,761
Due from Shanghai Brilliance and its affiliated companies 31,874 15,828
Due from other affiliated companies of
Brilliance Holdings Limited (ii) 61,125 88,123
Due from affiliated companies of JinBei 35,071 —
Due from affiliated companies of the joint venture
partner in Ningbo Yuming 18,281 280
Due from an associated company 11,175 —
Due from affiliated companies of the joint venture partner in
Shenyang Xinguang Brilliance Automotive Engine Co., Ltd.
(“Xinguang Brilliance”) — 2,001
596,937 113,993
Provision for doubtful debts — (12,230)
596,937 101,763
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9.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

b.

(Cont’d)

) The amount due from Shanghai Yuantong during the year bears interest at a rate of 5.4% per annum. The balance of
approximately RMB439 million (2000: Nil) as of year end represents commercial notes issued by Shanghai Yuantong in

settlement of the outstanding receivable.

(i)  Included in the amounts due from affiliated companies of Brilliance Holdings Limited is approximately RMB56 million
(2000: Nil) guaranteed by a shareholder of an affiliated company. As of December 31, 2000, approximately RMB86.6

million was guaranteed by the joint venture partner in Mianyang Xinchen.

Save as disclosed above, the amounts due from affiliated companies are unsecured and non-interest
bearing.

Credit is offered to affiliated companies following financial assessment and an established payment
record. These affiliated companies are generally required to settle 25% to 33% of the previous
month’s ending balances. The aging analysis of amounts due from affiliated companies is as follows:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Less than six months 530,051 97,388
Between six months to one year — 86,605
Between one to two years 66,886 —
596,937 113,993
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9.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

C.

(Cont'd)

As of December 31, 2001 the notes receivable from affiliated companies arising from trading

activities consisted of the following:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Notes receivable from Shanghai Brilliance 536,859 345,196

Notes receivable from Shanghai Yuantong 144,935 75,806
Notes receivable from other affiliated companies of

Brilliance Holdings Limited 3,075 16,427

Notes receivable from an associated company 2,000 —
Notes receivable from an affiliated company of the

joint venture partner in Ningbo Yuming — 12,250

686,869 449,679

All the notes receivable from affiliated companies are guaranteed by banks in the PRC and have

maturities of between one to six months.

As of December 31, 2001 included in prepayments and other current assets are approximately
RMB168 million (2000: Nil) of prepayments for purchases of raw materials made to an affiliated

company of Brilliance Holdings Limited.
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

e. As of December 31, 2001, amounts due to affiliated companies arising from trading activities
consisted of the following:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Due to associated companies 169,589 238,329

Due to Shanghai Brilliance and its affiliated companies 173,636 71,118

Due to JinBei and its affiliated companies 107,095 14,468

Due to other affiliated companies of Brilliance Holdings Limited 32,340 102,107
Due to affiliated companies of the joint venture partner of

Ningbo Yuming 6,287 3,584
Due to affiliated companies of the joint venture partner in

Xinguang Brilliance 3,132 —

492,079 429,606

The amounts due to affiliated companies are unsecured and non-interest bearing. Amounts due to
affiliated companies are generally settled on a monthly basis at 25% to 33% of the previous month’s
ending balance. The aging analysis of amounts due to affiliated companies is as follows:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

Less than six months 469,034 429,606
Between six months to one year 11,461 —
Between one to two years 11,584 —
492,079 429,606
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(Cont'd)

f. Particulars of other significant transactions between companies comprising the Group and affiliated

companies during the year are summarized below:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 34)
Purchases of fixed and other assets from affiliated companies of .
Brilliance Holdings Limited 41,984 24,498
Purchases of moulds from an affiliated company of
Shanghai Brilliance 35,750 —
Purchase of an intangible asset from an affiliated company of
Brilliance Holdings Limited — 681,100
Acquisition of Key Choices Group Limited (*Key Choices”) from
Brilliance Holdings Limited 278,213 —
Acquisition of Xinguang Brilliance from Brilliance Holdings Limited — 388,000
Sales of fixed assets to an affiliated company of
Brilliance Holdings Limited 5,558 —
Sales of fixed assets to an associated company 18,425 —_
Management and consultancy fees charged by
Brilliance Holdings Limited 12,405 5,796
Interest income from Brilliance Holdings Limited
and affiliated companies 23,709 56,964
Interest income from Shanghai Yuantong 15,930 —
Interest income from an associated company — 2,386

Pursuant to a trademark license agreement, JinBei granted Shenyang JinBei Passenger Vehicle
Manufacturing Company Limited (“Shenyang Automotive”) the right to use the JinBei trademark on

its products and marketing materials indefinitely at no cost.
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

g.  As of December 31, 2001, the advances to affiliated companies consisted of:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Advances to Brilliance Holdings Limited and its affiliated companies:
Interest bearing at 5.5% (2000: 5.5% to 7.2%)
per annum (i) 40,000 200,068
Non-interest bearing 256,223 407,639
Advances to JinBei and its affiliated companies:
Non-interest bearing (2000: non-interest bearing) 2,163 1,100
298,386 608,807
Long-term advances to an affiliated company of
Brilliance Holdings Limited
Interest bearing at 5.5% (ii) 39,111 —
Non-interest bearing (ii) 5,693 —
44,804 —

i) As of December 31, 2000, advances to Brilliance Holdings Limited and its affiliated companies of approximately
RMB128.2 million were guaranteed by the joint venture partner in Mianyang Xinchen.

(i) The long-term advances to an affiliated company of Brilliance Holdings Limited is wholly repayable in year 2003.

Save as disclosed above, the advances to affiliated companies are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment dates.

h.  As of December 31, 2001, the advances from affiliated companies consisted of:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 34)
Advances from Brilliance Holdings Limited and
its affiliated companies 54,276 52,311

The advances from affiliated companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repayment dates.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2000: 16%) on the estimated assessable
profits in Hong Kong for the year ended December 31, 2001. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
companies within the Group operate.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
The Company and its subsidiaries:
Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax — 1,611
PRC enterprise income tax : 116,250 314,726
116,250 316,337
Associated companies:
Current taxation:
PRC enterprise income tax 5,405 6,197
121,655 322,534

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation.
Income Tax

The Company was incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and has received an undertaking from the
Ministry of Finance in Bermuda pursuant to the provisions of the Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection
Act, 1966, which exempts the Company and its shareholders, other than shareholders ordinarily residing
in Bermuda, from any Bermuda taxes computed on profit, income or any capital asset gain or appreciation,
or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax, at least until the year 2016.

The Company also provides for Hong Kong profits tax at rate of 16% based on estimated assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
Income Tax (Cont’d)

The subsidiaries are subject to state and local income taxes within the PRC at their respective tax rates,
based on the taxable income reported in their statutory financial statements in accordance with the
relevant state and local income tax laws applicable.

Shenyang Automotive is subject to state and local income taxes within the PRC at standard rates of 15%
and 3% respectively in accordance with enterprise income tax laws applicable to sino-foreign equity joint
venture enterprises.

Ningbo Yuming Machinery Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Yuming”) is subject to state and local income
taxes within the PRC at standard rates of 15% and 3% respectively in accordance with enterprise income
tax laws applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws in the PRC,
Ningbo Yuming is fully exempted from state enterprise income tax for two years starting from the year
ended December 31, 1997, followed by a 50% reduction of enterprise income tax for the next three years
thereafter. In addition, Ningbo Yuming is also fully exempted from local enterprise income tax for the five-
year period. As a result, the effective tax rate for Ningho Yuming was 7.5% for the year ended December
31, 2001 (2000: 7.5%).

Shenyang XingYuanDong Automobile Component Co., Ltd. (“Xing Yuan Dong”) is subject to state and
local income taxes within the PRC at standard rates of 30% and 3% respectively in accordance with
enterprise income tax laws. During 1999, Xing Yuan Dong received official designation by the local tax
authorities as a “New and Technologically-Advanced Enterprise”. In the current year Xing Yuan Dong is
further designated by the local tax authority as a foreign-invested enterprise engaged in manufacturing
activities. As a result, the effective enterprise income tax rate for Xing Yuan Dong was 7.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2001 (2000: 33%).

Shenyang Brilliance Dongxing Automotive Component Co., Ltd. (“Dongxing Automotive”) is subject to
state and local income taxes within the PRC at standard rates of 15% and 0% respectively in accordance
with enterprise income tax laws applicable to “New and Technologically-Advanced Enterprises”. In
addition, Dongxing Automotive also received official designation by the local tax authority as a foreign-
invested enterprise engaged in manufacturing activities. Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws in the
PRC, Dongxing Automotive is exempted from state enterprise income tax for two years starting from the
first profitable year followed by a 50% reduction of enterprise income tax for the next three years.
Dongxing Automotive is also exempted from local enterprise income tax for the five years. As a result the
effective tax rate for Dongxing Automotive was 7.5% for the vear ended December 31, 2001 (2000: 0%).
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

11.

Income Tax (Cont’d)

Mianyang Brilliance Ruian Automotive Components Co., Ltd. (“Mianvang Ruian”) is subject to state and
local income taxes within the PRC at standard rates of 30% and 3% respectively in accordance with
enterprise income tax laws. During the year, Mianyang Ruian received official designation by the local tax
authority as a foreign-invested enterprise engaged in manufacturing activities. Pursuant to the relevant
income tax laws in the PRC the Mianyang Ruian is exempted from state and local enterprise income taxes
for two years starting from the first profitable year followed by a 50% reduction of enterprise income tax
for the next three years. As a result, Mianyang Ruian was exempted from income tax for the year ended
December 31, 2001 (2000: 33%).

Other subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to state and local income taxes within the PRC at standard rates
of 30% and 3% respectively, based on the taxahle income reported in their statutory financial statements in
accordance with the relevant state and local income tax laws applicable to foreign-invested enterprises.

Value Added Tax (*VAT”) and Consumption Tax

The general VAT rate applicable to Shenyang Automotive and the Company’s other subsidiaries in the
PRC is 17%. Shenyang Automotive is also subject to consumption tax at standard rates of 3% to 5%.

DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries are required to maintain discretionary dedicated capital, which includes a general
reserve fund, an enterprise expansion fund and a staff welfare and incentive bonus fund. The dedicated
capital is to be appropriated from statutory net income as stipulated by statute or by the Board of
Directors and recorded as a component of shareholders’ equity. Under generally accepted accounting
principles in Hong Kong (“HK GAAP”), the appropriation for the staff welfare and incentive bonus fund is
charged to income and any unutilized balance is included in current liabilities. As of December 31, 2001,
unutilized appropriations to the staff welfare and incentive bonus fund amounted to RMB14.7 million
(2000: RMB15.4 million). In 2001, appropriations of approximately RMB66.2 million (2000: Nil) to the
general reserve fund were made by subsidiaries of the Company. No appropriation to the enterprise
expansion fund was made by the subsidiaries (2000: Nil).

Distributions received from the Company’s subsidiaries are denominated in U.S. Dollars and are
translated at the prevailing unified exchange rate in the PRC. Total accumulated distributable profits of
these subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 amounted to approximately RMB1,313.6 million (2000:
RMB880.2 million). The distributable profits of subsidiaries are different from the amounts reported
under HK GAAP.
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12.

13.

14.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of approximately RMB266.9 million
(2000: RMB921.0 million) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Additional dividends proposed for additional ordinary shares issued (Note
28(a) (iv)) 1,850 —
Dividends declared or proposed for the year
— Interim, paid of HKS0.004 per share (2000: HKS0.003) 15,544 9,679
— Final, proposed of HKS0.005 per share (2000: HKS0.005) 19,605 17,912
36,999 27,591

Dividends amounting to RMB19.6 million (2000: RMB17.9 million) above are proposed after the balance
sheet date but before the financial statements approval date and are not recognized as a liability as at the
balance sheet date.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable to shareholders of
RMB900,269,000 (2000: RMB958,629,000), divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year as shown in the table below.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as the effect of the assumed conversion of the potential
ordinary shares outstanding is anti-dilutive. Diluted earnings per share for year 2000 is computed by
dividing net profit attributable to shareholders of RMB958,629,000 by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
from exercise of share options.

A reconciliation of the number of ordinary shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
as follows:

2001 2000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculation of basic earnings per share 3,533,552,900 3,151,418,000
Deemed issue of ordinary shares for no consideration — 94,563,803
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculation of diluted earnings per share 3,533,552,900 3,245,981,803
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15. FIXED ASSETS, NET
a. Movements in fixed assets of the Group are as follows:
2001
Furniture,

Machinery fixtures and

Land use and office Motor
rights Buildings  equipment equipment vehicles Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of year 20,170 306,052 791,032 66,822 51,545 1,235,621
Effect of acquisition of a
subsidiary — 813 2,755 146 137 3,851
Additions — 2,113 74,451 18,501 20,643 115,708
Transfer from construction-in-
progress — 316,541 1,451,013 15,326 280 1,783,160
Disposals — (736) (71,859) (4,724) (4,705) (82,024)
End of year 20,170 624,783 2,247,392 96,071 67,900 3,056,316
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
Beginning of year 8,290 66,212 438,606 52,855 22,707 588,670
Effect of acquisition of a
subsidiary — 204 909 114 72 1,299
Provision for the year 1,080 25,169 69,320 8,011 8,342 111,922
Provision for impairment losses — — 30,950 — — 30,950
Written-back on disposals — (641) (44,677) (4,106) (2,976) (52,400)
End of year 9,370 90,944 495,108 56,874 28,145 680,441
Net book value
End of year 10,800 533,839 1,752,284 39,197 39,755 2,375,875
Beginning of year 11,880 239,840 352,426 13,967 28,838 646,951

All the land use rights of the Group are related to land located in the PRC where no individual land

ownership rights exists. Buildings of the Group are also located in the PRC.
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15. FIXED ASSETS, NET (Cont'd)

b. Movements in fixed assets of the Company are as follows:

2001
Motor
vehicles
RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of year 2,637
Additions 1,235
Disposals ) )
End of year 3,868
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of year 1,351
Provision for the year 670
End of year 2,021
Net book value
End of year 1,847
Beginning of year 1,286
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSET

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of year 681,100 —
Additions . — 681,100
End of year 681,100 681,100
Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year — —
Amortization for the year — —
End of year — —
Net book value
End of year 681,100 681,100
Beginning of year 681,100 —

On July 15, 1999, Shenyang Automotive entered into an agreement with China Automotive Company Ltd.
(“CAC”), an affiliated company of Brilliance Holdings Limited, pursuant to which Shenyang Automotive
has the option, exercisable until June 30, 2001, to acquire all of CAC’s rights and interests in a certain
project at market price to be determined by Shenyang Automotive and CAC. The project involves the
design, engineering and prototype construction work for a multi-purpose vehicle and a sedan. On
December 28, 2000, Shenvang Automotive exercised the above-mentioned option and acquired all of
CAC’s rights, titles and interests in certain design and engineering agreements and technical assistance
agreement relating to the project, at a total consideration of RMB681.1 million. The consideration was
determined by mutual agreement between Shenyang Automotive and CAC with reference to the actual
costs and expenses incurred by CAC. No amortization has been provided as the intangible asset has not
been put into use.

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the intangible asset is not less than the
carrying value as of December 31, 2001.
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17. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Beginning of year 1,831,596 973,268
Additions 664,783 885,228
2,496,379 1,858,496
Transfer to fixed assets (1,783,160) (26,900)
End of year 713,219 1,831,596

18.

The average capitalization rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
is 4.91% (2000: 6.58%) less return on temporary investment of the borrowings calculated at a rate of 2.11%

(2000: 3.02%).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As of December 31, 2001, investments in subsidiaries comprised the following:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 2,062,134 1,756,772
Amounts due from subsidiaries:

Interest bearing 1,200,110 590,954

Non-interest bearing 669,755 560,255

3,931,999 2,907,981
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(Cont'd)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

In December 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Brilliance Holdings Limited for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Key Choices Group Limited (“Key Choices”) at a
consideration of approximately RMB278 million. Key Choices is an investment holding company and its
principal assets are the 100% equity interest in the registered capital of Dongxing Automotive and 90%
equity interest in the registered capital of Shenyang Xingchen Automotive Seats Co., Ltd. (“Xingchen
Automotive Seats”). Dongxing Automotive is a foreign-invested enterprise established in the PRC whose
principal products are automotive components for the use in passenger vehicles. Xingchen Automotive
Seats is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC in December 2001 and principally
engaged in the manufacturing of automotive seats.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and the interest bearing balances carry interest at rates
of 5.5% to 9% (2000: 9%) per annum. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts due from
subsidiaries will not be repayable in the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and accordingly,
the amounts have been classified as non-current assets.

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the subsidiaries is not less than the carrying
value as of December 31, 2001.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of equity
interest/voting right

Registered
Place of capital/issued attributable to the
establishment/ and fully paid Company
Name incorporation capital Legal structure Directly Indirectly Principal activities

Shenyang JinBei

Shenyang, the

USS$171,160,000

Equity joint

51% —

Minibus manufacturing,

Passenger Vehicle PRC venture assembly and sales
Manufacturing

Company Limited

Ningbo Yuming Ningbo, the USS$2,500,000 Equity joint — 51% Manufacturing and
Machinery Industrial PRC venture sales of automotive
Co., Ltd. components

Shenyang Shenyang, the US$29,000,000 Wholly foreign 100% — Manufacturing and
XingYuanDong PRC owned trading of automotive
Automobile enterprise components

Component Co., Ltd.
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(Cont’d)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Percentage of equity
interest/voting right

Registered X
Place of capital/issued attributable to the
establishment/ and fully paid Company
Name incorporation capital Legal structure  Directly Indirectly Principal activities
Shenyang Jianhua Shenyang, the RMB155,032,500 Equity joint — 100% Manufacturing and
Motors Engine Co., PRC venture trading of automotive

Ltd.

components

Ningbo Brilliance Ningho, the USS4,030,142 Wholly foreign 100% — Manufacturing and
Ruixing Auto PRC owned trading of automotive
Components Co., Ltd. enterprise components

Mianyang Brilliance Mianyang, the USS$750,000 Wholly foreign 100% - Manufacturing and
Ruian Automotive PRC owned trading of automotive
Components Co., Ltd. enterprise components

Shenyang Brilliance Shenyang, the RMB12,000,000 Wholly foreign — 100% Manufacturing and
Dongxing PRC owned trading of automotive
Automotive enterprise components
Component Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Xingchen Shenyang, the RMB10,000,000 Equity joint — 90% Manufacturing and
Automotive Seats PRC venture trading of automotive
Co., Ltd. components

China Brilliance Bermuda USS$120,000 Company with 100% ~ Investment holding
Automotive limited
Components Group liabilities
Limited

Southern State British Virgin USS1 Company with 100% — Investment holding
Investment Limited Islands limited

liabilities
Beston Asia Investment British Virgin USS1  Company with 100% — Investment holding
Limited Islands limited
liabilities
Pure Shine Limited British Virgin USS1  Company with 160% — Investment holding
[slands limited
liabilities

Key Choices Group British Virgin USS$50,000 Company with 100% — Investment holding
Limited Islands limited

liabilities

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding as of December 31, 2001.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Details of investments in associated companies are as follows:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Share of net assets other than goodwill 885,618 354,260
Goodwill

— Cost 452,665 452,665

— Accumulated amortization (18,685) (7,372)

1,319,598 799,553

Loan to an associated company — 269,170

1,319,598 1,068,723

In December 2001, Xing Yuan Dong entered into an agreement with two affiliated companies to establish
China Zhengtong Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Zhengtong”). Pursuant to the agreement, Xing Yuan
Dong contributed cash amounting to RMB480 million to acquire a 47.06% equity interest in Zhengtong.
Zhengtong’s principal activity is investment holding.

In December 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with Brilliance Holdings Limited for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of China Brilliance Automotive Components Group Limited
(“Automotive Components”) at a consideration of RMB388 million. Automotive Components is an
investment holding company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal assets of Automotive Components is
a 50% interest in the registered capital of Xinguang Brilliance, a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in the PRC whose principal products are gasoline engines for the use in passenger vehicles
and light duty trucks.

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the associated companies is not less than the
carrying value as of December 31, 2001.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (Cont'd)

Details of the Group’s principal associated companies are as follows:

Name of company

Place of

Registered

establishment/ capital/issued and

incorporation

paid up capital

Legal structure

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting right
held indirectly

Principal activities

Equity joint

Mianyang Xinchen Mianyang, the US$8,600,000 50% Manufacturing and sales
Engine Co., Ltd. PRC venture of automotive

engines

Compass Pacific Bermuda HKS$1,629,510,000 Company with 12.89% Investment holding
Holdings Limited limited

liabilities

Shenyang Aerospace  Shenyang, the RMB738,250,000 Equity joint 12.77% Manufacturing and sales
Mitsubishi Motors PRC venture of automotive
Engine engines
Manufacturing Co.,

Ltd.

Shenyang Xinguang Shenyang, the RMB60,000,000 Equity joint 50% Manufacturing and sales
Brilliance PRC venture of automotive
Automotive Engine engines
Co., Ltd.

China Zhengtong Shenyang, the RMB1,020,000,000 Equity joint 47.06% Investment holding
Investment PRC venture

Holdings Co., Ltd.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (Cont'd)

Unaudited combined financial information of the associated companies for the year ended December 31,
2001 is summarized as follows:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Balance sheet

Current assets 2,288,293 1,306,505
Long-term assets 1,344,050 1,527,258
3,632,343 2,833,763
Current liabilities (572,000) (586,920)
Long-term liabilities (824,336) (866,960)
Net assets 2,236,007 1,379,883

Income statement
Turnover 1,732,108 1,847,422
Net profit 70,678 209,468
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20. GOODWILL

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of year 248,316 248,316
Additions 191,267 —
End of year 439,583 248,316
Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year 18,919 12,564
Provision for the year 6,200 6,355
End of year 25,119 18,919
Net book value
End of year 414,464 229,397
Beginning of year 229,397 235,752

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the goodwill is not less than the carrying
value as of December 31, 2001.
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(Cont’d)
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

An aging analysis of accounts receivable is set out below:
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 34)
Less than six months 19,757 9,532
Between six months to one year 1,896 7,516
Between one to two years 2,823 17,071
Above two years 52,690 51,542
77,166 85,661
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (53,059) (58,624)
24,107 27,037

22,

Credit is offered to customers following financial assessment and an established payment record. Security
in the form of guarantees or bank notes is obtained from major customers. Credit limits are set for all

customers and may be exceeded only with the approval of senior company officers. Customers considered

to be of high credit risk are traded on a cash basis. Designated staff monitor accounts receivable and

follow up collection with the customers. General credit terms are between 30 days to 90 days.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable are primarily notes received from customers for settlement of trade receivable balances.
As of December 31, 2001, all notes receivable are guaranteed by established banks in the PRC and have

maturities of between one to six months.
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Advances to third parties 23,350 709,977
Subsidies receivable 81,950 227,950
Others 67,403 60,352
172,703 998,279

The advances to third parties are guaranteed by JinBei, have no fixed repayment dates and bear interest at

6.1% (2000: Nil) per annum.

24. INVENTORIES

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

Raw materials 319,173 296,260
Work-in-progress - 46,783 115,411
Finished goods 273,417 399,522
639,373 811,193

Less: Provision for inventory obsolescence (12,404) (15,562)
626,969 795,631

Included in finished goods are inventories of approximately RMB5.3 million (2000: RMB4.0 million) that

are stated at net realizable value.

25. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Secured | 200,000 428,077
Unsecured 205,500 619,152
405,500 1,047,229

65



Notes to the Financial Statements

25.

26.

(Cont’d)
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SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS (Cont’d)
As of December 31, 2001, the short-term bank loans were
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Secured by:
Property, plant and equipment of Shenyang Automotive
with net book value of — 421,880
Guaranteed by:
An associated company — 143,808
The Company 200,000 —
NOTES PAYABLE
2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bank notes 3,300,000 3,217,318
Commercial notes — 350,000
3,300,000 3,567,318

27.

As of December 31, 2001, the notes payable were pledged by short-term bank deposits of approximately

RMB1,925.8 million (2000: RMB905.5 million).
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aging analysis of accounts payable is set out below:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
Aged less than six months 666,216 472,068

66



Notes to the Financial Statements (conta)

[Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

2001 2000
Number of Number
Shares Amount  of Shares Amount
000 000 ’000 000
Authorized:
Ordinary shares of USS$0.01 each 5,000,000 USS$50,000 5,000,000 USS50,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of USS80.01 each 3,666,053 RMB303,194 3,348,053 - RMB276,891

a. Share Capital

(i)

(iD)

(iii)

(iv)

By a resolution passed on March 31, 2000, the authorized ordinary share capital was increased
from USS$10,000,000 to USS$50,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
USS0.01 each.

On April 14, 2000, as a result of a bonus issue of nineteen shares for every existing shares at
then, the outstanding share capital was increased to RMB251.7 million by the capitalization of
RMB239.4 million of share premium in full settlement of 2,891,508,255 ordinary shares of
USS0.01 each on the basis of nineteen new ordinary shares for every then-existing shares.
These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares.

On April 14, 2000, the Company’s shares traded on The New York Stock Exchange Inc. were
converted to ADSs at a ratio of 100 shares to 1 ADS.

On May 25, 2001, arrangements were made for a private placement to professional and
institutional investors of 318,000,000 ordinary shares of USS0.01 each at a price of HKS$2.20 per
share by Zhuhai Brilliance Holdings Company Limited (“Zhuhai Brilliance”) and Mr. Yang
Rong, Chairman of the Company. The price of HKS2.20 per share represents a discount of
approximately 12% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares of HK$2.50 per share as
quoted on SEHK on May 24, 2001. On the same date, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Zhuhai Brilliance and Mr. Yang Rong for the subscription of 318,000,000 new
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at a price of HKS2.20 per share. All the shares which were
issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

b.

Share Options

On September 18, 1999, the Company approved a share option scheme under which the directors
may, at their discretion, at any time during the ten years from the date of approval of the scheme,
invite employees of any member company of the Group, including executive directors, to take up
share options of the Company. The maximum number of shares on which options may be granted
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company excluding any shares issued on the
exercise of options from time to time. The exercise price in relation to each option offer shall be
determined by the directors at their absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the
greater of (i) 80% of the average of the official closing price of the shares on SEHK for the five
trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date or (ii) the nominal value of the shares.
The directors may determine and adjust the period within which the relevant grantee may exercise
his or her option and the proportion of the options to be exercised in each period, so long as the
period within which the option must be exercised is not more than ten years from the date of grant of
the option.

During the year, share options were granted to certain directors and employees of the Company,
entitling them to subscribe for a total of 31,800,000 (2000: 304,360,000) ordinary shares of the
Company at HKS1.896 (2000: HKS1.059) per ordinary share. The options granted during the year are
exercisable from June 2, 2001 to June 1, 2011.

A summary of the movements of share options granted under the scheme during the year and
balance outstanding as of December 31, 2001 is as follows:

Exercise price per share HKS1.896

Number of
share options

Beginning of year —
Granted during the year 31,800,000
Exercised during the year —
Cancelled/lapsed during the year —

Outstanding as of year end 31,800,000
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29. EQUITY AND RESERVES

a. Consolidated

Cumulative
Ordinary Share translation Dedicated Retained Proposed
shares premium adjustments capital  earnings Total dividend

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000

Balance as of January 1, 2000 12,332 1,263,322 39,179 5,191 1,217,310 2,537,334 6,497
Bonus issue of 19 shares for 1

share on April 14, 2000

(Note 28(a) (ii)) 239,370 (239,370) — — — — —
Exercise of employee stock

options (Note 28(b)) 25,189 320,001 — — — 345,190 —_—
Dividends declared during

the year — — — — (9,679) (9,679) 9,679
Profit for the year — —_ — — 958,629 958,629 —
Dividends paid during the year — — — — — — (16,176)
Dividends proposed

subsequent to year end — — — — (17,912) (17,912) 17,912

Balance as of December 31,

2000 276,891 1,343,953 39,179 5,191 2,148,348 3,813,562 17,912
[ssue of ordinary shares
(Note 28(a) (iv)) 26,303 689,963 — — — 716,266 —

Additional dividends proposed
for additional ordinary

shares issued (Note 13) — — — — (1,850) (1,850) 1,850
Dividends declared during the

year —_ — —_ —_— (15,544) (15,544) 15,544
Profit for the year — — —_ — 900,269 900,269 —
Transfer to dedicated capital — — — 66,165 (66,165) — —
Dividends paid during the year — — — — — — (35,306)
Dividends proposed

subsequent to year end — — — — (19,605) (19,605) 19,605

Balance as of December 31,

2001 303,194 2,033,916 39,179 71,356 2,945,453 5,393,098 19,605
Retained by:
The Company and subsidiaries 303,194 2,033,916 39,179 71,356 2,889,645 5,337,290
Associated companies — — — — 55,808 55,808
303,194 2033916 39,179 71,356 2,945,453 5,393,098
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29. EQUITY AND RESERVES (Cont’d)

b. Company

Cumulative
Ordinary Share translation Retained Proposed
shares premium adjustments earnings Total dividend

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

Balance as of January 1, 2000 12,332 1,263,322 39,179 620,521 1,935,354 6,497
Bonus issue of 19 shares for 1 share
on April 14, 2000

(Note 28(a) (i1)) 239,370 (239,370) — — — —
Exercise of employee stock options 25,189 320,001 — — 345,190 —
Dividends declared during the year — — — 9,679) (9,679) 9,679
Dividends paid during the year — —_ — — — (16,176)
Profit for the year — — — 920,972 920,972 —
Dividends proposed subsequent to

year end — — — (17,912) (17,912) 17,912
Balance as of December 31, 2000 276,891 1,343,953 39,179 1,513,902 3,173,925 17,912
Issue of ordinary shares

(Note 28(a) (iv)) 26,303 689,963 — — 716,266 —

Additional dividends proposed for

additional ordinary shares issued

(Note 13) — — — (1,850) (1,850) 1,850
Dividends declared during the year — — — (15,544) (15,544) 15,544
Dividends paid during the year —_ — — —_ — (35,306)
Profit for the year — — — 266,909 266,909 —
Dividends proposed subsequent to

year end — — — (19,605) (19,605) 19,605
Balance as of December 31, 2001 303,194 2,033,916 39,179 1,743,812 4,120,101 19,605

Dividends proposed after the balance sheet date are not recognized as a liability and accordingly are
not included as part of the distributions during the year (Note 2b).

The directors consider that the Company had approximately RMB1,744 million (2000: RMB1,514
million) available for distribution to shareholders as of December 31, 2001. Please also refer to Note
11 for details of distribution of profit.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

a. Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Profit before taxation 1,229,680 1,549,480
Share of profits or losses of associated companies (45,448) (74,423)
Interest income (106,285) (106,351)
Interest expense 178,028 96,280
Depreciation of fixed assets 111,922 106,683
Amortization of other long-term assets — 850
Amortization of goodwill 6,200 6,355
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 4,539 271
Provision for doubtful debts 1,352 227
Provision for doubtful debts written back (19,147) —
Provision for inventory obsolescence 3,000 5,000
Provision for impairment losses on tools and moulds 30,950 —
Decrease in accounts receivable 8,566 25,397
Increase in notes receivable (93,090) (85,796)
Increase in notes receivable from affiliated companies (237,190) (102,211)
Increase in amounts due from affiliated companies 477,136) (28,082)
Decrease (Increase) in other receivable 860,387 (816,588)
(Increase) Decrease in prepayments and other current assets (109,967) 297
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 168,639 (419,088)
(Decrease) Increase in notes payable (267,318) 3,166,015
Increase in accounts payable 181,361 13,182
Increase in amounts due to affiliated companies 133,968 86,401
Increase (Decrease) in customer advances 45,786 (75,036)
Increase in other payables 33,251 155,727
Increase (Decrease) in accrued expenses and other current liabilities 8,317 (29,373)
Increase (Decrease) in taxes payable 43,739 (107,284)

1,694,104 3,367,933
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)

b.

Effect of acquisition of a subsidiary

The assets and liabilities included in the acquisition are as follows:

RMB’000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,805
Fixed assets, net 2,552
Inventories, net 2,978
Receivables 98,291
Other assets 539
Payables (21,734)
Taxes payable (1,485)
Minority interests (1,000)
Fair value of net assets acquired 86,946
Goodwill 191,267
Total purchase consideration settled by offsetting against advances
to affiliated companies (Note 30 (d)) 278,213
Effect on cash flow
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 6,805
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)

C.

An analysis of changes in financing during the year is as follows:

Share
capital and
share

premium

RMB’000

Advances

from

Short-term affiliated
bank loans companies
RMB’000 RMB’000

Pledged
Bank
Deposits
RMB’000

Minority
interests
RMB’000

Balances as of January 1, 2000

Minority interest acquired

Increase in advances from
affiliated companies

Increase in pledged bank
deposits

Share of profit by joint venture
partners

Exercise of employee stock
options

Distributions during the year

Decrease in short-term bank
loans

1,275,654

345,190

1,590,860 23,402

— 28,909

(543,631 —

534,501

371,027

915,231
(31,007)

268,317

(624,604)

Balances as of December 31,
2000

Issue of ordinary shares

Distributions during the year

Increase in advances from
affiliated companies

Increase in pledged bank
deposits

Share of profit by joint venture
partners

Minority interest acquired

Decrease in short-term bank
loans

1,620,844
716,266

1,047,229 52,311

— 1,965

(641,729) —

905,528

1,020,277

527,937

(214,314)

207,756
1,000

Balances as of December 31,
2001

2,337,110

405,500 54,276

1,925,805

522,379
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont’d)
d. Major non-cash transactions during the year are as follows:

(i) Purchase consideration amounting to approximately RMB278 million for the acquisition of an
indirect equity interest in a subsidiary was offset against certain receivable balances from
affiliated companies.

(ii) Amounts due from and due to affiliated companies of approximately RMB87 million were offset
after agreement among the parties.

31. RETIREMENT PLAN AND EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC government, the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
defined contribution retirement plans for their employees. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liability to these retired employees. The Company’s subsidiaries are required to make specified
contributions to the state-sponsored retirement plan at 20% to 23.5% of the basic salary cost of their staff
for 2001 (2000: 20% to 23.5%). Commencing January 1, 1992, Shenyang Automotive agreed to pay a
Chinese insurance company to assume the responsibility for making pension payments to all employees
retiring after January 1, 1992. JinBei has undertaken to bear all pension payments to employees of
Shenyang Automotive who retired prior to January 1, 1992.

The retirement plan contributions payable for the year ended December 31, 2001 was approximately
RMB21.2 million (2000: RMB17.6 million).

In addition to the pension contribution, pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries are required to provide benefits such as housing funds and unemployment
insurance for their PRC employees. These provisions, which were approximately RMB10.4 million (2000:
RMB32.3 million) for 2001, have been calculated at a certain percentage (approximately 9.8% to 10.9% in
2001 and 29.3% in 2000) of the employees’ actual salaries.

The Group’s Hong Kong employees are covered by the new mandatory provident fund which is managed
by an independent trustee. The Group and its Hong Kong employees each makes monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ cash income with the maximum contribution by each of the Group and
the employees limited to HKS1,000 per month. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the income
statement represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, contributions amounting to approximately HKS160,000 (2000: Nil) were made.
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32. COMMITMENTS
a. Capital commitments

The Group had the following significant commitments which are not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000

Contracted but not provided for:

— Construction projects 6,902 117,000
— Investment and acquisition 5,000 —
— Purchase of equipment 107,758 307,953
— QOthers 11,022 166,567
Total 130,682 591,520

b. Operating lease commitments

As at December 31, 2001, the total future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases of the Group in respect of leased properties are as follows:

2001 2000
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 34)

Total future lease payments payable
Within one year 3,408 1,706
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,721 3,890
Total 6,129 5,596
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33.

34.

CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2001, the Group had bank notes of approximately RMB1,145 million (2000:
RMB1,523.2 million) which were endorsed or discounted but not yet honored.

As of December 31, 2001, subsidiaries in the Group had provided the following guarantees:

—  Corporate guarantees of approximately RMB1,114 million (2000: RMB1,727.5 million) for bank loans
and notes drawn by affiliated companies of Shanghai Brilliance;

— Corporate guarantee of approximately RMB25 million (2000: Nil) for notes drawn by affiliated
companies of the joint venture partner in Ningho Yuming; and

— Ajoint and several proportional guarantee with the joint venture partner of Shenyang Aerospace on a
long-term bank loan of approximately RMB540 million drawn by Shenyang Aerospace (2000
RMB540 million) which will expire in 2008.

As of December 31, 2001 the Company had provided guarantees of approximately RMB200 million (2000:
Nil) for bank loans of a subsidiary.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has adopted the following new accounting standards: SSAP 9 (revised) “Events after the
balance sheet date”, SSAP 14 (revised) “Leases”, SSAP 26 “Segmental reporting”, SSAP 28 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets”, SSAP 29 “Intangible assets”, SSAP 30 “Business
combination”, SSAP 31 “Impairment of assets” and SSAP 32 “Consolidated financial statements and
accounting for investments in subsidiaries” recently issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
These have resulted in changes to the presentation of various items and comparative financial information
has been restated accordingly.

Certain 2000 comparative figures were also reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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35. COMPARISON OF US GAAP AND HK GAAP

The Group has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001 in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).

Differences between HK GAAP and US GAAP give rise to differences in the reported balances of assets,
liabilities and net profit of the Group. The financial effects of the material differences between HK GAAP
and US GAAP are summarized and explained as follows:

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34)

Net profit reported under HK GAAP 900,269 958,629
Stock-based compensation (a) (15,462) (88,264)
Capitalization of borrowing costs (b) 2,270 4,936
Others — (5,271)
Net profit reported under US GAAP 887,077 870,030
2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net assets reported under HK GAAP 5,412,703 3,831,474
Capitalization of borrowing costs (b) 13,114 10,844
Others (6,014) (6,013)
Net assets reported under US GAAP 5,419,803 3,836,305
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35. COMPARISON OF US GAAP AND HK GAAP (Cont’d)

a. On June 2, 2001, share options were granted to certain directors and employees of the Group entitling them to subscribe for a
total of 31,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a discount of 80% of the average closing price of the shares as quoted on
SEHK for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

US GAAP requires that discounts granted to employees under a compensatory share option scheme be recognized as
compensation and charged to expense over the periods expected to be benefited, to the extent that the fair value of the equity
instrument exceeds the exercise price of the option on the date of grant. Since the options granted by the Company vested
immediately upon grant, compensation expense amounting to RMB15.5 million (2000: RMB&88.3 million) associated with the

share options was charged to the income statement.

Under HK GAAP, there is no specific accounting standard to account for the compensation element in share options. [ssuance

of shares under such scheme will be recorded as normal share issue transactions.

b. Under HK GAAP, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization includes the actual borrowing costs incurred on that
borrowing less any investment income earned on the temporary investment of funds pending their expenditure on the
qualified assets. Under US GAAP, temporary investment income earned is ignored. As a result, the amount of the net interest
capitalized under HK GAAP is lower than that under US GAAP.

36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements (set out on pages 23 to 78) were approved and authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors on April 25, 2002.
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w. HHHBEFH
CEEE EOMRME B EEE S B R FEOEINER - T M RO A R E R E (W
REIA) o WS BRI A R B B R R R B o SR A B R 2 SRR JF O R S 0E RO R | R
B AR (= E KA T L)

x. fhistGiER

MBRENERFELOT O RARETA > ZRAREEHE AN S THEC BMA SR A
B0 AR B SRR - B B BR SRS RE LY B BUF R -
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(BEBHME HERFEUAREREL)

3. ZHYH

AR E A S EE RS BB RN TR R R 10% 5 B 4 B 5 R B LLANY S8 o S e R B
R TG LLONRY S E o B AT S R SO R O 2 A e

W %5
—EBE 4R TEE LA
AR T ANBRET T
X
R FH 5,974,426 5,861,996
RER 8 E 244,010 444,434
6,218,436 6,306,430
HE = 38,863 8,917
HETWA Gk A) — 181,600
FlE A 106,285 106,351
A 2 6,363,584 6,603,298




L Y

(BEEHRE FEREUAREREM

5. MEBEBRA

BB TEEERE
AR®F A BT
FIEWARHA
— AT 69,746 56,679
— BT (I EE9 39,639 56,964
— — M B &N F (HEE 9 — 2,386
— BT (fi23) 1,350 —
110,735 116,029
BoOABIRBEETERLEAR
R B WA (MEE17) (4,450) (9,678)
106,285 106,351
6. FHEMHX
ZRBB A TR AE
AR50 N
2B
— EEANTFERNRHEER 227,192 175,398
W ERIRETHATEAR
ZHREB X (MaE17) (49,164) (79,118)
178,028 96,280
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(BmEHRRE FEREAAREREN)

7. BRBLEIA 43

PRBUAT A 2 2R T 8 AT BRI F A

R4 CEEEE
AR® T NERHBEF
IR
BHETRMEE — 850
Bl EEineE 111,922 106,683
HEBRTEEEEE 4,539 271
R B B B S
— — M RATER 6,200 6,355
— B BELE BRI SR 11,313 3,398
i R 17 & A 3,000 5,000
Fi B I #6 B s (B s 18 1 A 30,950 —
BEIRA (RERFRESFMD) 169,794 170,485
HEEE (ERETE L 4,307,988 4,436,155
R E 1,352 227
K% BB B 2 2,300 2,325
{E 50 k18 - F3E 11,608 5,413
BLAE B — A% B AT BB 3 2 TR A 26,825 7,623
B — MR B AT BB 32 2 55 Al B XX 23,981 17,652
fRHER 36,982 14,042
BEMRAHEE 2,540 3,788
FEA
13 0] R BR 13 1 19,147 —
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(BREFLE HEXFAARESENL)

8. HHRMBMITHAENE
a. HHME
RFEEFELAFAGIBI6EFATFHRENEEMSFROT ¢

SRR CEEEH
ARBFE  ARETE

WITEE -

e — -
H At 4
— EAFHE - WP REYA & 18,630 12,989
— RREBRZACL — —
— BIREF B Z K — —
— REWMZAHE — —

BIEATESE

ik — —

18,630 12,989

bl TR EREM e L ALFAETERREALATAMBHEAT I CBEERE TEE
H% 38 A 1.896 1 TT I 4F 1A B AL 19,952,000 A A B A fr o BLAFBERRER R ZEEF —FEANA B
BEZE—-—HENA—B WM - AFEZR BT FE AT E A R

HEEANPEMEcHERINNEE EREITEAFATESE MeBR T - ZEME 1650

HEEERNE XA TAR A E RS EGRAEHE  UR 5 I R w5 B 43 1 A R BT A R
A% & B A R AR o
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(BEEHLE  FERERAREBEL)

8., HHERMWBITHARME &)

a. HHPME (F

TRBRE4E TEEFE

A B % 1,000,0007C 8 L4 T 3 3

A R #1,000,0017C A E % 1,500,0007C 1 1

A B #1,500,00150 F A R %2,000,0007T 4 3

A B %5,000,0010C £ A R #5,500,0007C — 1

AR % 7,000,0010C £ A B ¥ 8,500,00070 1 —

9 8

FRE\EEUEREZIME (CFTEF B -

b. MINUREHFMAL (EHEEEREMER INZMEFHBEUT

—RE A ZEEERE
AR¥T R AR®T T
EARHE WU REYA & 17,388 12,989
RN P — —
EEHH 5 5
IEB=§ :§=| — —

AEANBRE_FT S AT BLEEEZIZRAFMERRSFIAALAFZES - |
EZBED R EXET] -

BN S A R O SO AT (R RN A BUR A A S B 2 R B R R R
WE(CZETEE M) o

ALAETREESHTHEARTARF (TZAHD - REZFH - AQFRAESERERFWRA

UERLNFEREGEYAESHEEZRETIREAL - AAFERFBREMSZEE DAL - B
WEEZEZ-F+ AT —HULEFEEEPEAL ML (ZFEFTE 8 -
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(BREFRE FEFBERAARERER)

9. FEALZES

BWBEARAALNRAN-URSUEFA T ERRSAAME TS S THEEUEREBZAA -
fEMALZHEERBERZERBE - BIIRERAEE AL -

R BEHEREME S CAEREESN  REMRBREBEA L LS 5B QS HA L B RS T HEE A &R
EBAER,/SHARMEERR ZHBMERZHHEBOT

a. FRCAEFEHETHREAFAEBBLAANRENFEFFETZERLGHHEMLAMT -

BB ZEREE
AR®T X NREEF T
(ff i34)

] Shenyang Brilliance Automotive Company Limited

(Hi %% JinBei Automotive Company Limited) ([JinBeil)

L H B s m AT 14,923 3,527
R B & M B H G A w] 317,046 25,319
@] Shanghai Brilliance Group Co., Ltd.

(['Shanghai Brilliance] ) X H 5 & /s 7l #1785 & 907,232 4,821,322
% B8 5 Shanghai Brilliance X H 5 & 2\ & 164,323 153,933
[é] Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 X & W & 4 &) ik 17 44 & 59,816 644,167
% #% B Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 & T ¥ & 4\ 7 274,379 406,020
[ Shanghai Yuantong Automobile Sales and Service

Company Limited ([ Shanghai Yuantong]) # 17 8§ & 2,622,002 83,509
Shanghai Yuantong fi& - > & 4 %& 64,070 —
] B AT S 61,683 98,546
REE B B E LA 635,373 715,610
FEEEE R TETRAA (TEEGR])

GERERFZHE LA 33,524 33,237
] Shenyang Aerospace Mitsubishi Motors Engine

Manufacturing Co Ltd. ([ Shenyang Aerospace])

GECEBHIETHE — 1,710
MEBEHREAE LB ZME AFIETHE — 15,136
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Bh B R Wk w0

(BRERdE  BFENBUARERENL)

9. BHEALZEY (&
a. ()
Lz IAEEBEBFE A AFANE B PEENE REEMEEZ AT EET -

b. MOEE—FF+_A=+—H KAEGEHZHEREELFRIEMNT

g -3l 3 TEEEFE
AR AREFT
(it ##34)
f& & Shanghai Yuantong X T8 (i) 439,411 7,761
fE % Shanghai Brilliance & 2 B 8§ 7 7 3K 15 31,874 15,828
fE i Brilliance Holdings Limited 22
H T B S &) KR (i) 61,125 88,123
HE W 4 MR 2 W B O B B OE 35,071 —
ERERMRAEELCETEZHE L HIE 18,281 280
FE U — K B & 2 B 5RE 11,175 —
FE WL Shenyang Xinguang Brilliance Automotive
Engine Co., Ltd. ([ Xinguang Brilliance)
EELEBHT BN F KIE — 2,001
596,937 113,993
R AR — (12,230)
596,937 101,763
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(BEEFEE FEXFUAREREM

9. BEANLZRS
b. ()

() 4 RJMEYL Shanghai Yuantong #KIBIG 4P| 25 4/EFH B « FRE B AR #439,000,0000C (Z BEFE
# M) > K/ Shanghai Yuantong % % AT i KRB EM KEM BT EEE -

!

(iiy MEUL Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 B g 2 5 $0 78 o7 1 1% 49 A B % 56,000,00070 (ZHETEE © #) 2 &
o Am—KHBELARAMNBREMELER RZ_ZEFFE+TA=Z+—H 5 AR H86,600,0005T 89 £
HHEGHESELEFHMELER -

PRl E R Ee & 4h > MU E LA R RES A ERREREE -

FEETHE IR BINREHRE BB AR CESEE HWEBBAF WAL AMKL
72 25%%33% MEULH B o AN ENIREB ST -

ZEBAE —E
ARETIT ANR®TIT

0l
e
A

e o

(Bt 5534)

e A i B 530,051 27,388
NEAE—4F — 86,605
—EE {4 66,886 —
596,937 . 113,993
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(BEEHRE HEXEAAREREN)

9. BHEALRY &)

c. MIFZ-F+_AZ+—R EEEBEZFTFHNENHBELAAEREEUTEE

TRB A ZEEERE

AR¥T ANRET T

(Hf5t34)

FE Wt Shanghai Brilliance 2 22 #% 536,859 345,196
% Shanghai Yuantong 2 %% 144,935 75,806
JE U5 Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 H & 5 B 7 2 Z % 3,075 16,427
TR W B O B R AR 2,000 —
BUEFHRAECERHZ - FREBLRAIZRE — 12,250
686,869 449,679

MEBRBE AT 2 ZHEYEFHZETELER AHEYNFEF—ENEAZHE -
d RIFEZ-F+-A=Z+—H ATHRELETHIEEPCHFEHART168,000,000T (—FF

— 4 M) f) 4% > E A A Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 — ZF % 8 2 7 8 & R & B 2 T84+ &
I -
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(BREFILE  FEREAAREREN)

9. BBALRE )

e. MIFEF—F+TA=Z+—0 REBZEHZENEBLFTEDT

—REF—AE “EREE

AR®T T NR T

(Bt 534)

JRE A5 Bt 5 v W] 3R 169,589 238,329
FE £+ Shanghai Brilliance f E B B 4\ 5 50 IB 173,636 71,118
FE AT JinBei B Ho 5 B 2 7] 2K H 107,095 14,468
& 17 Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 E & ¥ B /> 7 3R 32,340 102,107
EMEEHREECER BB LA NE 6,287 3,584
& {7 Xinguang Brilliance & % 1> 2 8 ¥ 2 W JB 2 7 3 IH 3,132 —
492,079 429,606

T AT U JB % ) BRIE S B SRR AT R B o MEAT IR N B RIE — e A B A MR ST 2 25%E 33%M
SCAT o AT B s R BRIREY AR EE o AR AR

SRR CEFEF
ARBTE  ARWTR

Nz 469,034 429,606
NEHE—F 11,461 —
—FEWEF 11,584 —

492,079 429,606
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(BREEFE MEXEUAAREREL)

9. BWEALRE 4

f.

AEBBTRELAFEEBLAARFENETCHEERZHHFEHELAMT

e 5 Sk ZEREEAE
ARET ARET T
(ff7£34)
] Brilliance Holdings Limited Z ¥ & 4 &)

HEEEKEMERE 41,984 24,498
) Shanghai Brilliance Z — X ¥ J& /> 7 I H & A 35,750 —
i Brilliance Holdings Limited Z B 8 /s i B B & & — 681,100
5] Brilliance Holdings Limited U ¥ Key Choices Group

Limited ([ Key Choices!) 278,213 —
[« Brilliance Holdings Limited 4% #% Xinguang Brilliance — 388,000
i Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 —~R¥ B A A EFH E & & 5,558 —
] — B e 0 Bl S B B 2 E 18,425 —
] Brilliance Holdings Limited S {1 & # % /A 12,405 5,796
i Brilliance Holdings Limited 7% £ W J& 4> &) di BUF] B dt A 23,709 56,964
] Shanghai Yuantong Ui Bt F| Bl A 15,930 —
Al — K B o F LR Bl A — 2,386

RE - HE RS JinBel REEGEMFEREAMAA ([EHEFE) REHLEBRY

fh L S BRIA S0 R R & M AR

48



M B W% B R

(BRBEE HEREULAREBEL)

9. BMEANLZEY (&)
g WIEE-F+-AZ+—H > MEBATRTNT :

e = i
ARBTE  ARWTRE

=] Brilliance Holdings Limited % F 5B/ 7] 457 -
HWAERSSEF B (ZEEERE  55EFET72E) (1) 40,000 200,068
E) 256,223 407,639

7] JinBei & B U 2 7 837
RE(ZEZEE G 8) 2,163 1,100

298,386 608,807

@) Brilliance Holdings Limited 2 — %

Ll VARSI UL
H5.6EF A (D) 39,111 —
% B () 5,693 —

44,804 —

) WZEZEZHF+-_F=+—8H 1" Brilliance Holdings Limited REHBE AT B LY IR
128,200,0000C - ARG R A E L LD FEE -

(ii) 1\ Brilliance Holdings Limited —F BB A EIM EMB T AR —_ERE=ZFE L MMEIE o
MrESchral b > mBE AT EMR YA ML B E TR

h, RIFEZ-H+-_AZ+—H  KEBEBLAZHRAZWNT -

“ER 4 “EREEF

AR® T ANRETF T

(Fft 3% 34)

* B Brilliance Holdings Limited %% X & /0 5 2 #43%¢ 54,276 52,311

REBBARZAZIMEREE  BEEZEMHEEY -
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(BEEFRBE FEXFUARERER)

10. i+ B & H

FRAARIEERE-ETF T ASH B EAEAREZ HIERRE A6 CEETE
16%) 2 B8 R4 < 1 510 T8 T AR 98 S R AE 2 4% {0 B ) IR 2 R A T A R MR R
S -

3

[

FPAG RS RZ BB &5

—®B—4 SETTH
ARWFRE  ARWTE
A0 ) B H I 2 B
A B
B FB B - 1,611
A TR 116,250 314,726
116,250 316,337
B A
A RLIA
B SE AT AR R 5,405 6,197
121,655 322,534

3F7 45 A A7 B R oK 4 A B ML T o

B 13 Bt

ARFATIREARELERIMAL > TRSTHFEMBITRBEHBLAERFREE (—LRANHE) 2K
EE - TEHKRE o B AN MEAOR UFE B R CIRORERSN) BRI A AT ARE
ERaEEEIARZEMARERE (BEESEERZBEZHE ROV EE_F - ~Ehk -

AN A IR BRI 5 B M 2 A AR A AR 16% R BB B R B -
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(B=EHREE FEXFELAREBEML)

10. iR RN (&)
B B RL (45)

B JE8 2> W ZE AR A BRI B K S 7 RS B - 0 IE T B R BT B R 2 IR B WA o B 8 1 4 B
& B A B RN Z T TR

FHEERBNELRTEMN ZBZE LT AETERE - B Bk 5 A 15% 5K 3% 1 B & BN
BR BT ERTER

HEHRHRIEBWERLAR (EEHR]) BEEANIECENCEFREHE > Ao REER R
15% K 3%TE T BUR NN Z KT BT AR - MBEFE AR IEHRE  FEFRABE—IILELE
TIAZT-BILFERAMESFEELES AANB R CEFNEE > MEZAEEE RS
EFBHL0% . A BHBERTELEH AT CENMGERAE - WAL FEHERABRE_ZTE—
BHZAZT—HEFEZEBBRERTSN CEEEF 1 75% -

BHEAERRRETHMAARAT ([FHERD RBERFE K7 EEREBE 7B KA %30%%
IIEMER R YIMBE FZ LT R EFFEB - R AUUNLE > BLERER SRR EEE R (HHL
WA c AFE > EERBEREMTREREEEACERERH 2N ERE - Ft > BEX
PEREZFEZ-HE+ZAZ+-HEFEEZEEBERTSY (ZEFTFE 1 33% -

Shenyang Brilliance Dongxing Automotive Component Co., Ltd. ( [ Dongxing Automotive|) 1% = #7
MEEBBAMERE > RPEERDSNZIOROMEER BHRNBE R R S EFBH - Fo
Dongxing Automotive R M T H K B E AR FREEF ZHELE - BREPRAEBYFTBH
% > Dongxing Automotive 52 —EERN EERFAWMEEE > BH A LENBEB > E=ZME
FEH R A 22 PR 15 B150% © Dongxing Automotive IR E 2 H & i F S EFGH L4 - Bt - Dongxing
Automotive WHIE “EF —F I+ AZ+ —HUEFEZEBHERTSN(ZEZESE : 0% -
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(BRBEHRE HEREUAREBEL)

10. i3 B8 &)

11.

B f3 B ()

MBERMZAETMAERLA ([MBEmE]) RIECENER L - 7 B R 2R E30% K 3%
BMEHPEARZ T LERER « AFE  WEREELTBHERBIEE SR ERIERGI GRS -
RETEAROFERE MERZEE - AENEZEAMASFE  ER LT LM ER > BE
ZREERTRCEFTBES% - BEHERBE -FZ-F+ A=+ B LEEEHRENEH (ZF
T 0 33%) o

B HEHB AR ECEFER R R TIERE NS SE 2 EEWHREFE
WMERBA - P B AS R 12 30% 5 3R ER RGN K KM )7 B igH -

WEBR ([HEB]) KW EB

BISEERANGEFRZEMMEN BN MG ER LRS- BEEFETERTEREINE
5% AN TH BB - |

£ 5y ;&

RBFEINELENAEREERRERTRE A0 MBAREER - ENMEERELR B —KiHF
He CEBAESRBETIRANLERTEAES -EREATEHBEIESFSMRENEEFTRA - I
AR RBRAERY —E D - REBFELARGFHER B A TENREEEALES BRI IA
RN > AR M AR RESRIFHARBGEEN - R OFEF-FTHA=Z+—H  HETEF LEE
LALE S M RBH 2 BB NR 14,700,000 (ZFEF £ © AR15,400,00070) « it ZFEF—4
Ay w) KB o ' RN R 4066,200,00000 (ZEEEF - B E—-RHEEEL - WEARNEHERE
PEBRES (ZEEFE M) o

WEEAAFRMB AR Z R UETIE RFRER2G—EZRok R _FF-F+ /=

+—H > ZEWE AR MR M0 R A AELE S A 408 AR %1,313,600,0000C (ZFEEEFE - AR
880,200,0007T) * B AR Z At IRBFSEARIEF B AR R EH e A -
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B W B ek s

(BREMME FEXREAARERED)

12, B S4B

#1 N R 266,900,000 (ZFEZEE © ARK921,000,00070) 2 454 18 3R AL B FI 5 5 A N B) 3155 ¥R
FER o

13. &
AREF L N BT
B4 404 2 8 e 2 4 R SRR L (B 228(a) (i) © 850 j

FEERINEHERZRE

— - T 0.0040 (ZEEEE ¢ EH0.0035T) 15,544 9,679
— R R 0.0050T (ZEELE ¢ K 0.0057T) 19,605 17,912
36,999 27,591

Ll g E AR 19,600,000 (ZEEFEHE © ARH17,900,000 0) 2 B TR & H 0% B HH#HE
METMNERNEZEAER DU EHFA DB IEERSEE -

14, FR#AM

B BER R R T AR 5 R AR B R RO A AR B 900,269,0000T (ZFEEF & 0 AR 958,629,0007C) -
BRUT R RAFEEBATM O 2 mEF8atHE -

G AT EES AARBEARBTLT ARSI EMEBRTEY - ZEXTEGRIBEEN Y
3% 4 52 B R B A AR N R M 958,629,0007T Bk LA B2 48 B IR AT {0 18 AECHE T 728 4 2 A A T R v 1 AL
ZRHBMC AR E T AR MEF S REE -

SEEREARBEH AN T ARBEEHRNT

TRBE A ZEREERAE
ArsrEERERrRmF 2z T @z ki F 8 3,533,552,900 3,151,418,000
DI R EEED BT 2 %@ R — 94,563,803
S RHE G R 2 A 2 B4 3% 2 hn i 1 8 3,533,552,900 3,245,981,803
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(BREEFBE HERFAARERBEML)

15, [ 2 ¥ A

a. AEEBEZEZZEMT

“REH
B - KB
RWMAE
3 6 1 4 By RS RS it HHE CES

ARWTE AR®TE ARWTRZ AR¥TRT AR®TRE ARWTR

J A

£ 20,170 306,052 791,032 66,822 51,545 1,235,621

WE—ZHB AR L2 — 813 2,755 146 137 3,851

RE — 2,113 74,451 18,501 20,643 115,708

B TREA — 316,541 1,451,013 15,326 280 1,783,160

o= — (736)  (71,859) (4,724) (4,705)  (82,024)
E R 20,170 624,783 2,247,392 96,071 67,900 3,056,316

BRI & RMMAER

=) 8,290 66,212 438,606 52,855 22,707 588,670

WH—ZMBLrRAZEE — 204 909 114 72 1,299

o B R A 1,080 25,169 69,320 8,011 8,342 111,922

HEEBBRRE — — 30,950 — — 30,950

JS i B R B ) — (641)  (44,677) (4,106) (2,976)  (52,400)
R 9,370 90,944 495,108 56,874 28,145 680,441

W Thi 5 1

5 10,800 533,839 1,752,284 39,197 39,755 2,375,875

FH 11,880 239,840 352,426 13,967 28,838 646,951

AEEZTA T HERESRER TR AR MEEIENFE L Z AR - FERZIZ
FHAR AR -
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(BBEBHRRLE FERELAREREN)

15. [l 52 ¥ i 4 ()

b. ALFEEEELEBHOT

SRE A
"
AR®TR
A {8
] 2,637
wE 1,235
i @
5 3,868
Bt ¥
) 1,351
4 B 670
& 2,021
W% i 5% 1
G4 1,847
3] 1,286
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W5 R B R )

(BBFHME FEHREAARERSEL)

16. 8L E &

—B% 4 —EEEE
ARYT AE#T 5
Bk A
EAT] 681,100 —
RE — 681,100
FE 681,100 681,100
Rt e
) — —
£ i B _ _
e _ _
W i 4
28 <3 681,100 681,100
F 47 681,100 —

WA ELATHE » BB X HE Brilliance Holdings Limited Z it /& /A 8 & R B A B4 7
(THFBEEED RIS Bl FHFERAREE TR -FZ-F/A4=ZT0) » ZEBE
HEFHREEEZHE WEFREBER—MEERZNEEALEZ - 2EHES KEHABRER
WEZHF  ITHEREEFETE - RZBFFE AT AH > BHFETE LR REE - Gk
B ERERARAZEEZE TR R IEGRRLN CE R 22 ER - TEEEES » S
85 N R#681,100,0007C - UEHEEEFEMAFEEABES B FEIKENEEZ B KB LB
EMERE - ARNEEEEMRBAMSER > QI EE 28 -

TERSE > EUEEEREEREEREE —FE B+ — B ZIRE S -
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BB W A B wE a0

(BBEHUE HERFUARESEL)

17. FiE TR
—RR—F TEEE
ARBTL  ARKTR
) 1,831,596 973,268
mE 664,783 885,228
2,496,379 1,858,496
MEEEEE (1,783,160) (26,900)
5 713,219 1,831,596

18.

AUBMESERBAERZMBEERAZ AR ELLN%(CFEEE : 6.58% HESREEHHRE

ZIE R R2 1% (ZEFEFEE © 3.02% -

7 B8 A Wl Z BB

RIEFF-F+_A=1+—8 > PTHBLAZHEEHE

ZRE4 TEEEFE

ARET T AR F

LR > FAAE 2,062,134 1,756,772
JRE Wi T 2 ] KA

it 2 1,200,110 590,954

% B 669,755 560,255

3,931,999 2,907,981
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(BEEREE FERXEAAREREN)

18. R B A" Z 8% ()

WZEE—~E+ T H > K/ F H Brilliance Holdings Limited #737 — I8 {7 #% - # Ll Uk B Key Choices
Group Limited ([Key Choices!) 2% 2 BT R4« » RIEL A AR #278,000,0005C - Key Choices & —
RBEEWRAA > HEEEE S Dongxing Automotive 3t &4 Z 100%0% A # %5 & Shenyang
Xingchen Automotive Seats Co., Ltd. ([Xingchen Automotive Seats])) if #} & 78 2 90% 3% 4~ ## 35 -
Dongxing Automotive 2 ~ XEFBE ML FIEEREELE  RIEERATEZ RELTHMH -
Xingchen Automotive Seats & — XN _ZEE—F + - AAEFE N IMFIEEEELE HFTER
WIRHEEE A -

FE SR B 0 Bl SR IE R AR A - IFE BN FEOEZEIE (ZEZTEE 9B FHE - ARAEFERE » Bl
HEARRESEF VAT AR RS ZEARE Pt ZEXBEDRIBEEERBDEE -

EERE AHBARZARMEARGER ZFE DA — T 2IREE -

KAREEWBARAZEEDT

A 2 5 4
B A BAHS,
WL,/ oHATR BEEH W
%8 i i b B BERA  EHEEH HiE B IERR
EHREFEFERE B E 171,160,000 ¢ A EE€ BN E 51% — B HER
AHRRAHE EEER X
HERBRERR I hEIE 2,500,000 AELELE — 51% B RHE
AR E REZHH
FHRRERBETHMSE B 29,000,000% T 24 EHE 100% — WERET
HRAF REERME
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W B W B Rk a0

(BEBHHE FEXBEUAREREML)

18. AR A Al 2 8% (50

A w] AL
sEf A AR
) EELR BNEHEE®

AR ik 1 3 B BRBA BEHW Hi Mg FERH

Shenyang Jianhua W B VE B AR LEAELHE — 100% HEREE
Motors Engine 155,032,5007% REZ M
Co., Ltd.

ERERKAARE o [ 3E 4,030,142 0 EHNELE 100% — BERYEE
FHEERLT REZHE

BB ERRETIRE o [ 5 B 750,000% 0 2N ELE 100% — HEREH
ZHRGEFRLF RE R

Shenyang Brilliance o B 1% 1 AE®  24E4% — 100% HNEREE
Dongxing Automotive 12,000,000T BEERE
Component Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Xingchen B % P ARY HBEAELE — 90% NEREE
Automotive Seats 10,000,0007C REEHE
Co., Ltd.

China Brilliance Automotive 7 5% i 120,000 0 HRELEAE  100% — BEEE
Components Group
Limited

Southern State Investment HERTES 12T BRIEMLALE 100% — WEER
Limited

Beston Asia Investment EBETHE 125w FEWREELAA  100% — REZER
Limited

Pure Shine Limited HEELHE 1#3x ARELLF 100% — BEER

Key Choices Group EBELHRSE 50,000% 7. ARELALE  100% — BREER

Limited

RZFEZ-FF+ZA=+—H WELAHETAREEEEER -
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BF 5 2 WY ka0

(EAEEHLE  FESNEUAAREREML)

19. A BB AT ZHY

REE LR ZHEFENT -

ZRE A TEFREE

AR® T ANE#ETT

([t 3£ 34)

BT EEFE 885,618 354,260
A2

— B AE 452,665 452,665

— B (18,685) (7,372)

1,319,598 799,553

] — [ M 20 B B K — 269,170

1,319,598 1,068,723

WoEFE—E+ A BEEEHEMKEENFR W ER T China Zhengtong Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd. ([ Zhengtong!) - REZ W& - Him = E 3 & A KR %480,000,0007T Ux B Zhengtong 47.06%

ZHEHE o Zhengtong Z T E XK R EHR -

W EEZE+F R - A AHE Brilliance Holdings Limited % 32%is% - Ux 8 China Brilliance
Automotive Components Group Limited ([ Automotive Components)) & €3 2 &7k A > REA AR
#:388,000,0007C » Automotive Components £ it B HiE s M A L2 A E# KA F - Automotive Com-
ponents 2 F ¥ & 5 i+ Xinguang Brilliance 7% fif B% 4% & 50% % % > Xinguang Brilliance % ¥ = B i 57
ZHHSEERELE HIEESAMEERBI GFH MR 2 KRB % -

TERL BELTZERMEREEN EE—FE+ A=+ -0 2EEME -
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(BBHEMRE HAEXEAAREREN)

19. R B AR Z8/E @)

AEBMEIEREAFZHEMT

oA AR AR T PR
W/ BB BAREE

% Sk SRBA  BEEH #EBEEALE EUEEH

RN R B 8,600,000 7T HAELEELE 50% HEREE
BRERLE RN ER

Compass Pacific Holdings HHEE 1,629,510,000 T  HREL AR 12.89% R EHER
Limited

Shenyang Aerospace <R % 5 ARHE LEEELHE 1277% HERHE
Mitsubishi Motors 738,250,0007C R B
Engine Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Xinguang I T AR LRERELE 50% @ W RE
Brilliance Automotive 60,000,0007C EHEEHH
Engine Co., Ltd.

China Zhengtong o B % 5 ARH RERELE 47.06%  HEER
Investment Holdings 1,020,000,000T

Co., Ltd.
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P %5 W B R o

(BEEHLE FEXFUAAREREL)

BENFIEE - EZE 4S5+ _F=+—HILEE2RkEEREHBBEERMENT -
ZRE A TEEERE
AR®TL ANBR®F T
EEAMFER
ME) G E 2,288,293 1,306,505
EHEE 1,344,050 1,527,258
3,632,343 2,833,763
E A A (572,000) (586,920)
AR (824,336) (866,960)
EEFH 2,236,007 1,379,883
Wy 78 %
o 1,732,108 1,847,422
A 70,678 209,468
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(BBEHHE FEFFEUARERENL)

20. B8
—RBE SRR
ARH T 58 AR MET 5T
PRk i
AT 248,316 248,316
7m 191,267 -
R 439,583 248,316
R
EH) 18,919 12,564
7 B 6,200 6,355
L 25,119 18,919
B i o AL
R 414,464 220,397
4 229,397 235,752

ERENAHEZARNEEAGEN - EE—F+ A=+ HZKREE -
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21.

22,

EHME HERFUAAREREN)

HE the e 3k

FEU IR Z BR B A FT 40T -

ZERE-4 TEEFEE

AR¥TFIL NE®T T

(7L 34)

A s AE A 19,757 9,532
ASEAE—4F 1,896 7,516
— R AR 2,823 17,071
(i 52,690 51,542
77,166 85,661

W R IE R (53,059) (58,624)
24,107 27,037

AEMEANTFELMBFELERCEZNRRERE  grEFREEE TBEF GUBRIER
ﬁT?J*“‘ZiLTﬁE?&W AEBLENAZFAEGFERE > FERELHELL T RPN BAMAER I7 7]
% cETHERAEARGFERRZEFAURSHEALEHETER - A TIHEER LTAREZBWE
Ffﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁdﬁl K2 TAR - — 2 EEH N F30H £90H -

M e 5 4R

EW%#EI%%W@E%?Z%%*”@uﬂiﬁ%WEE%Eﬁ% Pt L R Sy = o
R B R R R BT R B AN T A 2
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(BREHREE  FEREUARELEML)

23.

24.

25.

I A, M Bk TH
ZRBE A TREREEE
ANRET T AR T T
B 23,350 709,977
T i 4 B 81,950 227,950
Hit 67,403 60,352
172,703 998,279
MEZERA TR JinBel BH > WHMEEEBEHY  HELCIUE(ZEEEE ) FHE -
&
ZBEF—4E “EREE
ARETF T NBRMF 5
JE %1 319,173 296,260
5 46,783 115,411
AL & 273,417 399,522
639,373 811,193
WO R R B (12,404) (15,562)
626,969 795,631

HRA SR FEIEZFE (BF RS REGE AR%S5300,000T (ZEEEE - ARE4,000,00070) o

SRR T &
- ZEERE
ARWT R ANRWT T
A LA 200,000 428,077
AL A7 205,500 619,152
405,500 1,047,229
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Hh % WA WYk oa0

(BEEFEE  FAMNELAREREL)

25. B AT A& GE)

RZEFE-F T A=+ —H - EEETERLT I & B AR

B TEZEFE
AR Tt ANR#¥F T
LLTF 31 &% TEEHEH -
EEEHEDE  BEEKZHEZETFE — 421,880
MUTAEELER
— [H B 4 s 7 — 143,808
7N ] 200,000 —
26. HEAF 51
e 222k 3 CEFEFEE
AR® T ANEWF T
AT 3,300,000 3,217,318
GEX % — 350,000
3,300,000 3,567,318

MR_EE—F+ZH=Z+—H  BAEEHLARK1925800,000T (ZEEEF AR #905,500,000
Jo) Z B RAT A AR AR -

b

27. ME A HR K

FE AR SR B P AT 10 T

ZEF 4 “EELE
AR®T X AR®T T
HRES DA 7X@ A 666,216 472,068
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(BRBFRE HEFEAAREREN)

28. A K i B HE
ZRE—4 ZEEERE
B ¥ H g M BB W
000 Fx 000 T
R )
HFREEOIE T EEK 5,000,000 50,000F 5,000,000 50,0003 7t
BT REBHERE
FREECNETLZEER 3,666,053 AR%¥303,194% 3,348,053 A R%5276,8915¢
a. BA
() BRFERPN_EEZFEFZAZ+T—BHEREBE > ETEEERBRAR R 4,000,000,0008% 4 8 @

(ii)

(iii)

()

{50.012% 7T 2z & % AR T B 10,000,000 5T 3 Z 50,000,000 7T -

MIFEZFENATIMNE - gRAAEEEURE A ZROERI0A R - #OA L B

Hﬁfﬁa\/ﬁifﬁﬁﬁzﬁfﬂZ/\ﬁ‘W%Q 400,0007C EA AL - 158 BE 1O 57 5 48 A 2 2k #9847 2,891,508,255

E&EXE{EOM%IZ AR DU B RS N2 A R 251,700,0000C o LLEF AR 5 BEBLE
R = A R A RER -

RZEZFFNA+TME - Ao RAMNESFZEMARLFAREEZRM - %1008 5 15 %
20 FE A7 A {7 2 LU sl A SR B R R LA

W_%EZE—%EAFE _+HH > Zhuhai Brilliance Holdings Company Limited ([ Zhuhai
Brilliance ) J% 7 2 &] = & 10 b 45 A4 % $E 4§ 318,000,000 % 45 B% 1 (50.013% JT 2 3% 48 A% L) 45 R 1
o208 THABEE THENBERESE - ERBEOEE220 T WITHRANFTROGRZ
ZE-FEAATHBEEFEB TRt @S R250ETELH 2% ZE - R H - AR
&) B Zhuhai Brilliance B {0 55 4 80 57 — TH R 15 38 - LV & MR 1 (8 2.20% 7T 4 8 318,000,000
BEBEEOIRTZHEREN - AFEHFERTROES T HERRA ARG ZHF
G o
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(ps5EHnE FEREUAREREN)

28. A K Ik Bt BE ()
b. JEREHEE G S

—ANIERA+AE - ALNFMMET HBIRERTH - B0 EE 0 EBRESEEZ AR+
R EESFAEREA—FRALANES AFEATESR) EASLFBRE - 1k
e RE P th 2 i PR BOAS B R R 7R 00 B B BB AT IRAS (7 98 AN B AT G B R T 5% AT O A4 2 10% -
EE 2R ERER L ERENITEE - EERUAAAER CUEeELEE  OREHE
HOE R AR S 5 BORR TR A W 2 B A S E LRI E R 80% ¢ (DR AV (E - EE S EE AN
TR R EART  F BRR AT AT R AR o 1R (B AP 0 R AT R B AT R Y EL ) - BURB AR BE
WAETEAE T B SR AR A SR T4 -

FER o RLNEETRLEE AR BEREIE - A AL F &3531,800,000 (ZEEFEEF
304,360,0007% ) 4 % 7 (5 1.8963 7T (. EFEE ¢ 1.059%: 7T) A9 L M o A R ETIR B R AT (E
MR ET RN _EFT—FEAR _HREE ZF——FXA —~HILBFETHE -

AREERNREET IR LR RN EE-EL AT AR EZHEN

EWTF
FRATHE 1.896# I
JE BB H
A7) _
N 31,800,000
R AT —
ER R —
FERMMRTEZER 31,800,000
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(BEBEFLE  FEREUAAREBEN)

29. WA B fi

a. BH

Bt
HE R B 3 ¥ i S ¥ HHEA R E S R R A
ABR¥TT ARWTXT AR®TR ARWTT AB®TR ABRWFTR ARWTR
FiE— A —H2Z %% 12,332 1,263,322 39,179 5,191 1,217,310 2,537,334 6,497
FHEMA IEI A
WA UR TR0 AL
(1 3 28(a) (i1)) 239,370 (239,370 — — — — —
08 1R B B e HE
(Bi5E28(b)) 25,189 320,001 — — — 345,190 —
ERERRE — — — — (9,679) (9,679) 9,679
AR BB — — — — 958,629 958,629 —
A EE A — — — — — — {16.176)
FEEHERIRKE — — - — (17,912 (17.912) 17,912
ROEZEZF+RAZ+—8
b3 276,891 1,343,953 39,179 5.191 2,148,348 3,813,562 17,912
WEAT M (B FE28(a) (iv)) 26,303 689,963 — — — 716,266 -
BHTEITERY
BWIRENRE (HiF13) — — — — (1,850) (1.850) 1,850
EHERRE — — — — (15,544) (15,544) 15,544
REF R — — — — 900,269 900,269 —
?ﬂi BHEAEA - — — 66,165 (66,165) — —
FECMRE - — — - — — (35,306)
iF ,%a H#% ka8 - — — — (19,605) (19,605) 19,605
—#E+TZAZ+—8
303,194 2,033,916 39,179 71.356 2,945,453 5,393,098 19,605
(3
PN Dl PN 303,194 2,033,916 39,179 71,356 2,889,645 5,337,290
BEAE : — — — — 55,308 55,808
303,194 2,033,916 39,179 71,356 2,945,453 5,393,098
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(BEEHEE FEXELARESENL)

29, B K (&)
b, AR

R
HER et £ 8 1 i %A% RERN GES BRI A
IN AR T T ANR®T T ARBTI ARBT T ARMETIT

\CEEEE—F—E
ZHER 12,332 1,263,332 39,179 620,521 1,935,354 6,497
RIEEZERA+EA
B HEH 18 (B 5E280a) ()

MR 198R AL AR 239,270 (239,370 — — — —
AR 25,189 320,001 — — 345,190 —
REETREE — — — (9,679 (9.679) 9,679
AEZEEMEE - — — — - (16,176)
FEERF - — — 920,972 920,972 —
FRERRRE — — — (17,912 (17.912) 17,912

TZAZt—B2H% 276,891 1,343,953 39,179 1,513,902 3.173,925 17,912
BT EER (B3 28(a) (in) 26,303 689,963 - - 716,266 —
CHARSEERZ ,

BERBIRE (H3E13) - — — (1,850 (1,850) 1,850
AEFERRE - — — (15,544) (15,544) 15,544
AFEEEAMRE - — - - - (35,306)
A5 L LR — — — 266,909 266,909 —
FHREEBRRE — — - (19,605) (19,605) 19,605

RIFE—f

£3

TZRA=Zt+t—HZ &8k 303,194 2,033,916 39,179 1,743,812 4,120,101 19,605

RHEBHEERBBRZBREAGHEITAAR - B - EAFEZRNLFFHAELT 2 0B
(Fff 5L 2b) o

FERIBARNAN EE—FE+ A =+—HBEFL ARH1,744,000,000C (—FEEZZH : AR
1,514,000,0007C) AR IR FRE - EETERFZHE > BRFESHEMF11-
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(BRBEFEE FEREUAREREL)

30. &R Bl R AR

a. BEWHMERBREHFDIRSEAFEHHIE

CRE A ZEEEF
AREFI NE#F T
(Hff 5£34)

W o AT 2 1,229,680 1,549,480
BT A B 4 ) B R B 1R (45,448) (74,423)
FlE U A (106,285) (106,351)
FIEBE L 178,028 96,280
Bl EEREINE 111,922 106,683
HihRH & — 850
P R 6,200 6,355
HEETEEZBR 4,539 271
FAE 1,352 227
ROIE B (19,147) —
A T A 3,000 5,000
P B Lk I 1B 1 30,950 —
JE Wi R I8 8,566 25,397
FE A LA 3 (93,090) (85,796)
it J 1 ) JHE i B R HE (237,190) (102,211)
JEE Wi 55 G > ) 3K TE S (477,136) (28,802)
At B i R T D (M 860,387 (816,588)
BHATHEREMRB EE G2 WD (109,967) 297
TR () 168,639 (419,088)
REAT S48 (D) 15 (267,318) 3,166,015
JEE A°F B 2R 4G 181,361 13,182
JEE 151 U B 2 5] 2K TE B4 0 133,968 86,401
&5 RO (D) 45,786 (75,036)
At A7 3K TR 2 33,251 155,727
JRE 5T B 37 K At B & FE A0 (kD) 8,317 (29,373)
R AT o TEC 8 (el ) 43,739 (107,284)

1,694,104 3,367,933
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(BSEFRE FEREUAREREN)

30. A BAERB RN &)
b. KEWMBAANZES

WiEM B ARz EEMAGKME

ANBR#ET
ReEkBHeEEY 6,805
EEERE > 78 2,552
TE > B8 2,978
FE U R IR 98,291
Hih &R 539
JE A 2 IH (21,734)
FE <+ Foi T8 (1,485)
B AR i (1,000)
FEEZNTEE 86,946
GRS 191,267
VBT TFHB Az RELTEEE R EmMEE (H7E300)) 278,213
ReERERE
HeRBAZESZEY 6,805
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(BSEFLE FEHREAAREREML)

30. HEBERBERR R (B

C.

HERNZBEZB T :

A
JB A B W A BB 2w [B%ii%1 4 ¥
B B itk 3 2% BAT 7% Bt B B 2
ABHTIT ARET T AERET T N Y T ARET T
WZEZEFE—F—H8
ZH% 1,275,654 1,590,860 23,402 534,501 915,231
BALDHBRER — - — — (31,007)
REBGEARZBIEM — — 28,909 — —
O 0 8R AT 7 3R 18 0 — — - 371,027 —
EECEBERGRA — — — — 268,317
1708 1R B BT 345,190 — — - -
R s - - - — (624,064)
SHETESE D - (543,631) - — —
WZEZEF+_A=+—H
5% 1,620,844 1,047,229 52,311 905,528 527,937
BTLER 716,266 - — — —
24 o IR - - — — (214,314)
REWE LTz BN - — 1,965 — —
TSR AT 7 3R - - - 1,020,277 —
AECEBHNIERT — — — — 207,756
BADHE RS -~ — — — 1,000
HEBTERHE D - (641,729) — — —
WoEFE—+ZF=Z+—8
ZE % 2,337,110 405,500 54,276 1,925,805 522,379
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30. HEBEHERME @
d. R FEREREXHWT :

Q) WE—FHWBAGRZHERAERZH AREE278000,000 Tt BEREERBEE AT ETE
A &% BRI HE B o

(i) F i e B 2 ] 0B S W 4 R EOE ) N R 87,000,000 o B 7RI AT 8 T A 4R A -

31. B3 KRB HEHN

RAFFBE A ZERRE AL EPRZME A AZE BR 7 ERRICRKETH o A B EUF
FRNEERERRESTRL -FAoAZHEBARAAMNBERE ZBRSHIEL EEUR . BXEA
BT T —FRFZ20%E235%( ZFEFTE : 20%F23.5% - E— NN _F—H—HE  BHEFH
EEER—MREEE MR URES- NN _HF—A—HERKZMERARERRKEZEHT -
EMCERMERER -INZE A B ERZEREFEREAEZ 2HERKRSE

BE_EZ-F+ A =1 HEFEZRMEBRE SRR 2 5 AR H21,200,00070 (ZFEFH
A R 17,600,0007T) ©

FRBIRG HEE0N - MBRBEABRERER  AorZMBLArAMETRESREEESMLEHER
LS o HEBENIREBEESEBHFEHEETAOC R R ZFE-FH98%ZE10.9% R —FEFF
293% FHERR > W_EE -FR_FFTETEDRE A ANRH10,400,0007T K& A K $32,300,0007T -

AEHEZEEEREZHERELCHSRE  LHBFHELAEeABIZEATHE - FEBALEFERE
BIYFEAMEEMER B a2 BB EAREREWAZ EXAERERERESEZER MK
FHLLE F 11,0008 T AR - ﬁk&m%Zﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬂm$%$“ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁ e REEZZ
F—F+ " RA=ZFT—RHLFEE > FAEEEDHL160,0000 T (ZFFFE M) ZHK

74



W& R MW

(BEEFLE FENEUAREBEWD)

32. R ¥
a. BEARKE

AEBBGEMBWMERFTA T I MR BEZERRE

TRE A ZEEE

ARETX ANERWET T
ERT4E R BA
— BEIEH 6,902 117,000
— % & i 5,000 —
— BEE M 107,758 307,953
— H 11,022 166,567
FCE 130,682 591,520

b. HBAHL AN

ALEERBEATHERKERY RZIEFEF-F+ A=+ —HHMHEEYEMES Z RARHEE KK

HEWTF

TERE A TEEEE
AR¥TI ANBREF 5T
(fif 7£34)

FEAT R AR E J K3k IE
—FE R 3,408 1,706
—FHERER 2,721 3,890
6,129 5,596

75



B W 3 s
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33.

34.

K% A

ﬁi‘:ff E+ZA=+—H  ZEBFLHE ARK1,145,000,00000 (ZEFEEF © AR 1,523,200,000
TL) ZRAT RO A LB - IR A -

MRZEE—F+ZA=Z+—H0 > AEBEZWE LR TIIER

— U T Shanghai Brilliance 2 Fi B 2> 7] ) A R 1 1,114,000,0007C (—ZFFF 4 © AR H1,727,500,000
L) ZRITERRERFL L RAER

— WHEEMREEGELCEBHZEHEB A AM LA ANRE®25000,0000C (ZEEEE M) 2 ZHEE
HARER &

— HEB#ITE K E Shenyang Aerospace Z &
Aerospace ¥ B £ A R #540,000,0000C (ZFEZE
BER > BRERME N ZFE/NER o

EhEBTHRMES I ZHERES Shenyang
S N R 540,000,0000T) 78 & 3% R K R B 4%t

“EE-FEAFZH=ZF—H > KA~ %WE/\ﬁi’J/\Eﬁ%‘ZOOOOOOOOE( FELTE B ZR
fTEREBIELR -

ALEEREANT THHFEEFMAGHEMIEHGHEN - g EHFEEON KB (HEREE
W]~ EEFEAIEAS 145 (BERD [HE] - GRFEFENE265E [ 2EEW] - et HHER L2845
T AR NAEE] - R EBEAF0NBEEE] - et EHENHEI0NIEH ]
SR EHEANEIREERBE Rt EHEMERR [ FEMHRERNHB LR E L gt E
THRIERZEHBZ B AAEE  TOLBEMBEEREAERET] -

ET-EETEZURBFEABHNE - UAAREEZ 2R -
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(BEZBHEE - FTEH

TEUAREEENL)

35. XE ARG E M B EFEAZ G EN 2 B
REFCREBEER AR FA TEHAFEFFEU) GRS - MRE_FF -4+ _HA=+—H
IEFEZHBHRE -
FHEADBEFRAREEAREF R ZREHNAEHEELNABEHRAARN 2 AR RER -
FHAREFTENEERNGT R MFIT2EMERCHE ST RBEEBENT ¢
—RE—4 TOEEBELE
A BR# T3 INY
(Fff 5234
$ TR e N SR R BI R 3 2 4l 900,269 958,629
PARE R T8 A A & 2 A 5 (a) (15,462) (88,264)
& Bl A &AL (b) 2,270 4,936
HoAh — (5,271)
P BB E B B R R B B Rk 2 AR 887,077 870,030
TRRB I T IERAE
AR®T NREET ¢
HREEARDESRL BRI EEFHE 5,412,703 3,831,474
& &R A E AR (D) 13,114 10,844
A (6,014) (6,013)
?’“HG%I/\E{’ R ERZEESE 5,419,803 3,836,305
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35. X A e G ENEEFEAZ Gl B L8 o)

a. N_BE—FESNAZH > ARBETEERERERERE  WEEMARURMER L BB AERTS
B AR B 22 B Bk 2 F 2 A T (B I RE80% 2 {E 4% - REEE A 0 Al Z & 431,800,000 EE K

FHARGF HARE  REHEEBEREGIBR TR ZIFEHAE EWEED > URHEFTZEHEMIA
MY BEERETIAZATEEESFR K EOMEOMBREZTHEES L - R AN FES 2 BT
MBI RS BEEESE GEERE ARN55000007 (T EEETE AR 88,300,0000T) 2 5
ERFTAWEE -

BREFELATEGF R TESEGHEAREBREBZWHELTR - REZFRET 2 ROBRERES
Z R EIT AR

b, MBFELADEHER  SEBBAEAZEENARBAFETEERNELZEREE A WE HE
BEREANRGCEREEMETENESREMBRIEMTERA - REZELAREEE > EHERERA

ER

ATZHE B ZTRFELREHRUBAEFAZANEFBEURBALARGAFUZHERD -

36. W 5 i o ik

MBRE GIRNBBERE N _FEZ_HFMNA -+ T IRESF G MEMIREET -
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